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AUDITORS' REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
DUBAI ISLAMIC BANK (PUBLIC JOINT STOCK COMPANY)

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statésnehDubai Islamic Bank Public Joint
Stock Company and its subsidiaries (the ‘Group’hick comprise the consolidated balance
sheet as at 31 December 2007 and the consolidatedhe statement, consolidated cash flow
statement and consolidated statement of changesquity for the year then ended, and a
summary of significant accounting policies and o#lanatory notes.

Management’'s Responsibility for the Financial Statments

Management of the Bank is responsible for the pegfma and fair representation of these
financial statements in accordance with Internatiofinancial Reporting Standards and the
applicable provisions of the articles of assocratnd the Bank, Federal Law No. 8 of 1984 (as
amended), Federal Law No. 10 of 1980, Federal Law6Nof 1985 and Islamic Sharia’a rules
and principles. This responsibility includes: desng, implementing and maintaining internal

control relevant to the preparation and fair prés@mn of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud orrerselecting and applying appropriate

accounting policies; and making accounting estisitat are reasonable in the circumstances.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on ¢hisancial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with Internati@tandards on Auditing. Those standards
require that we comply with ethical requirementsl golan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance whether the financial stateraenfree from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtaurdia evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The pmloes selected depend on the auditors’
judgement, including the assessment of the risksnaferial misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In nakhose risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entitpieparation and fair presentation of the
financial statements in order to design audit pdaces that are appropriate in the circumstances,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinionthan effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. An audit also includes evaluating therappateness of accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of accounting estimates madaabggement, as well as evaluating the
overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtameulifficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion.



Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statetagiresent fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of the Bank and its subsidiares of 31 December 2007, their financial

performance and cash flows for the year then emdedcordance with International Financial

Reporting Standards and comply, where appropmdth,the articles of association of the Bank,

Federal Law No. 8 of 1984 (as amended), Federal Naw10 of 1980, Federal Law No. 6 of

1985 and the Sharia’a rules and principles as uhted by the Fatwa and Sharia’a Supervisory
Board of the Bank.

Report on other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

We also confirm that, in our opinion, the financsshtements include, in all material respects,
the applicable requirements of Federal Law No. 8384 (as amended), Federal Law No. 10 of
1980, Federal Law No. 6 of 1985 and the articleassociation of the Bank; proper books of
account have been kept by the Bank and its sulbgisjaand the contents of the report of the
Board of Directors relating to these consolidaiedricial statements are in agreement with the
books of account. We have obtained all the infdlonaand explanations we required for the
purpose of our audit and, to the best of our kndgdeand belief, no violations of the articles of
association of the Bank, Federal Law No. 8 of 1@8tamended), Federal Law No. 10 of 1980
or Federal Law No. 6 of 1985 have occurred durhmgyear which would have had a material
effect on the business of the Bank or on its fimarmosition.

Ernst & Young

Signed by

Edward B Quinlan
Partner
Registration No. 93

30 January 2008

Dubai, United Arab Emirates



Dubai Islamic Bank (Public Joint Stock Company) &ubsidiaries

CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT
For the year ended 31 December 2007

INCOME

Income from Islamic financing and investing assets
Income from international murabahat, short term
Share of profits of associates

Income from other investments

Commissions, fees and foreign exchange income
Income from investment properties

Income from sale of properties under construction
Other income

Total Income

EXPENSES

Personnel expenses

General and administrative expenses
Provisions for impairment
Depreciation of investment properties

Total Operating Expenses

Profit before depositors’ share, tax and gain on tansfer of
interest in subsidiary

Depositors’ share of profits

Profit before tax and gain on transfer of interestin subsidiary

Income tax

Gain on transfer of interest in subsidiary
Depositors’ share of gain on transfer of interestubsidiary

Profit for the year

Attributable to:
Shareholders of the parent

Minority interest

Basic and diluted earning per share attributabtbeo
shareholders of the parent

The attached notes 1 to 50 form part of these fiaghstatements.
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2007 2006
AED’000 AED’000
3,214,483 2,289,558
627,136 525,153
203,462 16,148
708,727 151,974
798,327 906,716
187,639 153,203
141,331 412,710
126,869 120,995
6,007,974 4,576,457
(866,502) (636,711)
(591,986) (511,463)
(301,468) (76,467)
(10,500) (10,240)
(1,770,456) (1,234,881)
4,237,518 3,341,576
(2,356,014) (1,757,611)
1,881,504 1,583,965
14,148 (6,122)
1,895,652 1,577,843
968,964 -
(351,795 -
617,169 -
2,512,821 1,577,843
2,500,421 1,560,093
12,400 17,750
2,512,821 1,577,843
AED 0.83 AED 0.65
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Dubai Islamic Bank (Public Joint Stock Company) &ubsidiaries

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

For the year ended 31 December 2007

2007 2006
Notes AED'000 AED'000
ASSETS
Cash and balances with Central Banks 15 4,905,657 3,111,724
Balances and deposits with banks and other finkimsgtutions 16 1,186,657 407,245
International murabahat with financial institutipsiort term 16,279,701 14,991,239
Islamic financing and investing assets 17 48,887,841 35,282,947
Investments in associates 18 3,741,596 1,050,401
Other investments 19 4,210,877 3,523,944
Properties under construction 20 - 2,171,004
Properties held for sale 21 131,831 136,585
Investment properties 22 1,499,303 761,213
Receivables and other assets 23 2,227,719 2,465,123
Property, plant and equipment 24 630,667 495,601
Goodwill 25 36,910 36,910
Total assets 83,738,759 64,433,936
LIABILITIES
Customers' deposits 28 65,016,828 47,732,482
Due to banks and other financial institutions 29 2,241,322 4,649,900
Sukuks 30 2,754,750 -
Other liabilities 31 2,931,200 3,155,269
Accrued zakat 33 129,542 72,035
Total liabilities 73,073,642 55,609,686
Shareholders’ equity
Attributable to equity holders of the parent:
Share capital 34 2,996,000 2,800,000
Statutory reserve 36 2,756,737 2,761,030
Donated land reserve 36 276,139 286,951
General reserve 36 1,650,000 895,000
Exchange translation reserve 36 27,340 30,323
Cumulative changes in fair value 38 1,006,637 544,649
Retained earnings 53,654 43,197
Proposed dividends 37 1,647,800 1,176,000
10,414,307 8,537,150
Minority interests 39 250,810 287,100
Total equity 10,665,117 8,824,250
Total liabilities and equity 83,738,759 64,433,936
Contingent liabilities 40 18,005,562 12,174,346

These financial statements were authorized foeigs@accordance with a resolution of the Board wé&€&iors dated
30 January 2008.

Khalid M. Al Kamda
Group Managing Director / CEO

H. E. Dr. Mohammad K. Kharbash H. E. Sultan Saeed Al Mansouri
Chairman Deputy Chairman

The attached notes 1 to 50 form part of these fiaghstatements.
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Dubai Islamic Bank (Public Joint Stock Company) &ubsidiaries

CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
Year ended 31 December 2007
2007 2006
Notes AED'000 AED'000

OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax including gain on transfer ofeirgst in

subsidiary net of depositors’ share of profits 2,498,673 1,583,965
Adjustments for:

Revaluation of investments at fair value througiome

statement 6 (169,026) 52,777
Dividend income 6 (94,487) (39,028)
Gain on sale of investment properties 8 (138,549) (108,636)
Income from sale of properties under construction 9 (141,331) (412,710)
ESOP expenses 10 36,847 30,312
Provisions for impairment 12 301,468 76,467
Share of profits of associates 18 (203,462) (16,148)
Depreciation of investment properties 22 10,500 10,240
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 24 85,539 56,553
Gain on transfer of interest in subsidiary 27 (968,964) -
Write off of goodwiill - 5,410

1,217,208 1,239,202

Changes in operating assets and liabilities:

Trading investments 47,849 (7,083)

Islamic financing and investing assets (13,873,499) (7,047,840)

Receivables and other assets (214,270) (1,267,411)

Customers’ deposits 17,284,346 14,340,532

Due to banks and other financial institutions (2,173,245) 550,543

Other liabilities 967,434 1,529,256

Accrued zakat (61,153) (37,249)

Tax paid 32 (35,291) (11,553)
Net cash provided by operating activities 3,159,379 9,288,397
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Held to maturity investments - 156,996
Proceeds from sale (purchase) of investmentsra¢dhie

through income statement 369,509 (367,205)
Purchase of available for sale investments (490,238) (802,022)
Proceeds from sale of properties under construction 4,754 978,227
Proceeds from disposal of investment properties 417,535 289,984
Addition to properties under construction 152,564 (2,325,429)
Purchase of investment properties 22 (1,038,388) (203,516)
Additions to properties held for sale - (4,517)
Dividend income 94,487 39,028
Investments in associates 90,341 (947,609)
Purchase of property, plant and equipment 24 (329,556) (124,243)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 96,919 19,378
Deposits with financial institutions with maturitwer 3 months - 46,478
Exchange and other adjustments (2,013) (9,102)
Net cash used in investing activities (634,086) (3,253,552)

The attached notes 1 to 50 form part of these fiaghstatements.
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Dubai Islamic Bank (Public Joint Stock Company) &ubsidiaries

CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
Year ended 31 December 2007

2007 2006
Notes AED'000 AED'000

FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Dividends paid (980,000) (300,000)
Issue of shares - 3,029,330
Issue of sukuk 2,754,750 -
ESOP shares acquired - 8,226
Minority interests (48,690) 131,224
Net cash from financing activities 1,726,060 2,868,780
INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 4,251,353 8,903,625
Cash and cash equivalents pertaining to subsidiaposed 27 (389,546) -
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning ofébe y 42 18,510,208 9,606,583
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE END OF THE YEAR 42 22,372,015 18,510,208

The attached notes 1 to 50 form part of these fiaghstatements.
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Dubai Islamic Bank (Public Joint Stock Company) &ubsidiaries

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

Year ended 31 December 2007

As of 31 December 2006

Net movement in cumulative changes in fair
value recognized directly in equity

Exchange adjustments

Income for the year directly recognized in

equity

Profit for the year

Total income for the year

Scrip dividend — 2006

Cash dividend — 2006

Payments to minority

Minority interest — relating to new
subsidiaries

Transfers

Cost of share based payments

Zakat

Directors’ fees
Proposed cash dividend
Proposed scrip dividend
Other movements

As of 31 December 2007

Attributable to equity holders of the parent

Cumulative
changesin Retained Proposed Minority Total
Reserves  fair value earnings  dividends Total interests Equity

AED’000 AED’000 AED’000 AED'000 AED'000 AED'000 AED’000  AED’000
2,800,000 3,973,304 544,649 43,197 1,176,000 81587, 287,100 8,824,250

- - 461,988 - - 461,988 - 461,988

- (2,983) - - - (2,983) - (2,983)

- (2,983) 461,988 - - 459,005 - 459,005

- - - 2,500,421 - 2,500,421 12,400 2,512,821

- (2,983) 461,988 2,500,421 - 2,959,426 12,400 &6

196,000 - - - (196,000) - -

- - - - (980,000) (980,000) (980,000)

) ) . ] - - (33,994) (33,994)

- - - - - - 9,190 9,190

- 755,000 - (755,000) - - -

- - - 36,846 - 36,846 36,846

- - - (118,660) - (118,660) (118,660)

- - - (5,350) - (5,350) - (5,350)

- - - (1,198,400) 1,198,400 - -

- - - (449,400) 449,400 - -

- (15,105) - - - (15,105) (23,886) (38,991)
2,996,000 4,710,216 1,006,637 53,654 1,647,800 110307 250,810 10,665,117

The attached notes 1 to 50 form part of these fighstatements.




Dubai Islamic Bank (Public Joint Stock Company) &ubsidiaries

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

Year ended 31 December 2007

As of 31 December 2005

Net movement in cumulative changes in fair

value recognized directly in equity
Exchange adjustments

Income for the year directly recognized in

equity
Profit for the year

Total income for the year

Scrip dividend - 2005
Cash dividend — 2005
ESOP shares allocated
Issue of shares
Transfers

Cost of share based payments
Zakat

Directors’ fees
Proposed cash dividend
Proposed scrip dividend
Other movements

As of 31 December 2006

Attributable to equity holders of the parent

Cumulative
Share ESOP changesin  Retained Proposed Minority Total
Capital Shares Reserves fair value earnings dividends Total interests Equity
AED'000 AED’000 AED’000 AED’000 AED’000 AED’000 AED’000 AED’000 AED’000
1,500,000 (8,226) 1,621,971 - 5,460 598,354 3,B9,5 121,646 3,839,205
- - - 544,649 - - 544,649 - 544,649
- - 22,003 - - - 22,003 16,480 38,483
- - 22,003 544,649 - - 566,652 16,480 583,132
- - - - 1,560,093 - 1,560,093 17,750 1,577,843
- - 22,003 544,649 1,560,093 - 2,126,745 34,230 6Q@IAr5
300,000 - - - - (300,000) - - -
- - - - - (300,000) (300,000) - (300,000)
- 8,226 - - - - 8,226 - 8,226
1,000,000 - 2,029,330 - - - 3,029,330 98,257 3327,
- - 300,000 - (301,646) 1,646 - - -
- - - - 30,312 - 30,312 - 30,312
- - - - (69,672) - (69,672) - (69,672)
- - - - (5,350) - (5,350) - (5,350)
- - - - (980,000) 980,000 - - -
- - - - (196,000) 196,000 - - -
- - - - - - 32,967 32,967
2,800,000 - 3,973,304 544,649 43,197 1,176,000 78158 287,100 8,824,250

The attached notes 1 to 50 form part of these fighstatements.




Dubai Islamic Bank (Public Joint Stock Company) &ubsidiaries

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
At 31 December 2007

1 ACTIVITIES

Dubai Islamic Bank (Public Joint Stock Company) warporated by an Amiri Decree issued on 29 Shg85
Hijri, corresponding to 12 March 1975 by His Higheethe Ruler of Dubai, to provide banking andteglaservices
based on Islamic Sharia’a principles. It was subsgtly registered under the Commercial Companies ftuamber
8 of 1984 (as amended) as a Public Joint Stock @agnp

In addition to its main office in Dubai, the Bankerates through its branches in the U.A.E. The mpemying
consolidated financial statements combine the itieivof the Bank’s head office, its branches amos&liaries (the
Group) and its associates and joint ventures:

Country of Percentage
Subsidiaries Principal activity incorporation of equity
2007 2006

1. Bank of Khartoum Banking Sudan 52.3% 52.3%
2. Islamic Financial Services L.L.C. Brokeragevgms UAE 95.5% 95.5%
3. Dubai Islamic Bank Pakistan Ltd. Banking Peeas 100.0%  100.0%
4. Al Tanmyah Services L.L.C. Labour services UAE 99.5% 99.5%
5. Deyaar Development Company P.S.C. Real edéatelopment UAE - 95.5%
6. Millennium Capital Limited Investments anddirtial services UAE 95.5% 95.5%
7. Millennium Finance

Corporation Limited Financial advisory UAE 65.0% 65.0%
8. Al Tatweer Al Hadith Real Estate Real estateatopment Egypt 96.0% 96.0%
9. Al Tameer Modern Real

Estate Investment Real estate development Egypt 96.0% 96.0%
10. Al Tanmia Modern Real

Estate Investment Real estate development Egypt 100.0%  100.0%
11. Naseej Fabric Manufacturing L.L.C.  Textile Miéacturing UAE 99.0% 99.0%
12. DIB Printing Press L.L.C. Printing UAE 99.5% 99.5%
13. Zone One Real Estate

Management Co. Investments in real estate ~ Caystmmds 100.0%  100.0%
14. Zone Two Real Estate

Management Co. Investments in real estate ~ Caystemds 100.0%  100.0%
15. Al Islami Trade Finance FZ L.L.C. Investments UAE 100.0%  100.0%
16. DIB Lease One Ltd. Investments Bahamas 100.0%  100.0%
17. DIB Lease One (Dublin) Ltd. Investments Irelan 100.0%  100.0%
18. Gulf Atlantic FZ L.L.C. Investments UAE 100.0%  100.0%
19. Al Islami Oceanic

Shipping Co FZ L.L.C Investments UAE 100.0%  100.0%
20. Emirates Trading Center L.L.C. Trading in nmatehicles UAE 100.0%  100.0%
21. Millennium Capital Holding PSC

(formerly Islamic Investment

Company P.S.C.) Financing & investing UAE 95.5% 95.5%
22. Al Ahlia Aluminum Company L.L.C.

(under liquidation) Aluminum fixtures UAE 75.5% 75.5%
23. Sequia Investments L.L.C. Investments UAE 99.0% 0.0%
24. Bulwark Investments L.L.C. Investments UAE 99.0% 0.0%
25. Optimum Investments L.L.C. Investments UAE 99.0% 0.0%
26. Rubicon Investments L.L.C. Investments UAE 99.0% 0.0%
27. Osiris Investments L.L.C. Investments UAE 99.0% 0.0%
28. Lotus Investments L.L.C. Investments UAE 99.0% 0.0%
29. Premiere Investments L.L.C. Investments UAE 99.0% 0.0%
30. Landmark Investments L.L.C. Investments UAE 99.0% 0.0%
31. Blackstone Investments L.L.C. Investments UAE 99.0% 0.0%
32. Blue Nile Investments L.L.C. Investments UAE 99.0% 0.0%
33. Momentum Investments L.L.C. Investments UAE 99.0% 0.0%
34. Mount Sinai Investments L.L.C. Investments UAE 99.0% 0.0%
35. Millennium Private Equity Ltd. Investments UAE 65.0% 0.0%




Dubai Islamic Bank (Public Joint Stock Company) &ubsidiaries

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
At 31 December 2007

1 ACTIVITIES - continued
Country of Percentage
Subsidiaries Principal activity incorporation of equity
2007 2006
36. Dar al Shariah Financial & Legal
Consultancy L.L.C Financial and legal advisory UAE 60.0% 0.0%
37. Wagqf Trust Services LLC Trust and fiduciaryvazes UAE 50.0% -

In addition to the registered ownership describealva, the remaining equity in the entities 2, 48,69, 11, 12, 21,
to 34 is also held by the Bank beneficially througiminee arrangements.

Country of Percentage
Associates Principal activity incorporation of equity
2007 2006

38. Etisalat International Pakistan Ltd Investments UAE 10.0% 10.0%
39. Bosnia International Bank Banking Bosnia 27.3% 27.3%
40. BBI Leasing and Real Estate L.L.C. Real estatelopment Bosnia 13.6% 27.3%
41. Liquidity Management Center (B.S.C)Brokers 7% ) 25.0% 25.0%
42. Emirates National Securitisation

Corporation Securitisation Cayman Islands 35.0% 35.0%
43. Deyaar Development P.J.S.C. Real estate dawelat UAE 43.0% -
44. Omega Engineering L.L.C. Mechanical, electi&calumbing UAE 23.7% 55.0%
45. Dubai Insaat Gayrimenkul

Sanayi Ve Ticaret Limited Sirketi  Propetgvelopment Turkey 43.0% 100.0%
46. DIB Tower SAL Investment in real estate Lebano 43.0% 100.0%
47. Beirut Bay SAL Property Development Lebanon  43.0% 100.0%
48. Deyaar (UK) Ltd Representative Office of Dayaa UK 43.0% 100.0%
49. Deyaar Cayman Ltd Investment holding company ayn@n Islands  43.0% 100.0%
50. Faisal Islamic Bank of Kibris Banking TRNC 31.0% 31.0%
51. Saba Islamic Bank Banking Yemen 18.5% -
52. Ejar Cranes & Equipment LLC Equipment leasing UAE 16.66% -

Country of Percentage
Joint ventures Principal activity incorporation of equity
2007 2006

53. Al Bustan Center Company L.L.C.  Rental of aparits and shops UAE 50.0% 50.0%
54. Gulf Tankers L.L.C. Cargo and transport UAE 50.0% 50.0%
55. Al Rimal Development Property development UAE 50.0% -

The entities listed as 22 and 54 did not condugtognerations during the current or previous periods

Although the Group’s interest in the equity of tmities listed under 38, 40, 51 and 52 is less #@6, the Group
exercises significant influence over these entitidshese investments have, accordingly, been ateduior as
‘investments in associates’.

The Bank carries out full banking services, finagcand investing activities through various Islanmstruments
such as Murabaha, Istisna’a, Mudaraba, Musharg&ighl, Wakala, Sukuk etc. The activities of th@r are
conducted in accordance with Islamic Sharia’a, Wwhgoohibits usury, and within the provisions of theicles and
Memorandum of Association of the respective ertitiithin the Group.

The address of the registered office of the Bartk @. Box 1080, Dubai, United Arab Emirates.
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Dubai Islamic Bank (Public Joint Stock Company) &ubsidiaries

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
At 31 December 2007

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION

Accounting convention

The consolidated financial statements have beepaped under the historical cost convention as rextiifor the
measurement at fair value of investments, othen tield to maturity investments, foreign exchangetreats and
profit rate swaps.

The consolidated financial statements have beesepred in UAE Dirhams (AED) which is the functiocatrency of
the Bank and all values are rounded to the netir@ssand UAE Dirhams except when otherwise inditate

Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements have beepaped in accordance with International Financiapdeng
Standards (“IFRS”), Sharia’a rules and principles determined by the Bank’'s Sharia’a Supervisory rédcand
applicable requirements of UAE laws.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprisditiaacial statements of the Bank and all its subsiels as at 31
December each year. The financial statementseoktibsidiaries are prepared for the same repoytag as the
parent company, using consistent accounting pelicie

Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the ddtacemuisition, being the date on which the Bankaoist control,
and continue to be consolidated until the dategheh control ceases.

All intra-group balances, transactions, income &mxgenses and profits and losses resulting frona-gitoup
transactions that are recognised in assets, angatied in full.

Minority interests represent the portion of prafit loss and net assets not held by the Bank angprasented
separately in the income statement and within gqgumitthe consolidated balance sheet, separate frarant
shareholders’ equity.

Changes in accounting policies
The accounting policies adopted are consistenttiwibe used in the previous year except as follows:

As of 1 January 2007, the Bank adopted and apgtiedollowing new IASB standards and interpretatiofhese
changes have resulted in additional disclosureyhbecluded for the years ended 31 December 200 Bamecember
2006.

Amendments to IAS 1 — Capital Disclosures

Amendments to IAS Presentation of Financial Statemem®re issued by the IASB &apital Disclosuresn
August 2006. They were required to be appliedpriods beginning on or after 1 January 2007. Assalt of
these amendments disclosure of information enalelrduation of the bank’s objectives, policies andcesses for
managing capital is made.

IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures

IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures was wdmethe IASB in August 2006, becoming effective feriods
beginning on or after 1 January 2007. As a rasithe adoption additional disclosures of the digance of financial
instruments for the Bank’s financial position aneffprmance and information about exposure to raksng from
financial instruments are made.

IFRIC 9 Reassessment of Embedded Derivatives

The Bank has adopted IFRIC Interpretation 9 as &driuary 2007, which states that the date to agsessistence of
an embedded derivative is the date that an entytfecomes party to the contract, with reassesisomy if there is a
change to the contract that significantly modiftes cash flows.

IFRIC 10 Interim Financial Reporting and Impairment

The Bank has adopted IFRIC Interpretation 10 &k &dnuary 2007, which requires that an entity masteverse an
impairment loss recognised in a previous interimqggein respect of an investment in either an gguastrument or a
financial asset carried at cost.

Adoption of these interpretations did not havegmificant impact on the Bank’s financial statemefotsthe current
year.
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Dubai Islamic Bank (Public Joint Stock Company) &ubsidiaries

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
At 31 December 2007

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION - continued

IASB Standards issued but not adopted
The following IASB Standards have been issued fmihat yet mandatory, and have not yet been addpytéte Bank.

IFRS 8 Operating Segments

IFRS 8 Operating Segments was issued by the IASBoirember 2006, becoming effective for periods cemcing
on or after 1 January 2009. The new standard ewyire changes in the way the Bank discloses iretom about its
operating segments.

IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements

A revised IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statesaras issued in September 2007 and becomes efféatifinancial
years beginning on or after 1 January 2009. Thaicgpion of this standard will result in amendnsent the
presentation of the financial statements.

IAS 23 Borrowing Costs

A revised IAS 23 Borrowing Costs was issued in Ma2607, and becomes effective for financial yeagiriming on
or after 1 January 2009. The standard has beésedeto require capitalisation of borrowing costsew such costs
relate to a qualifying asset. A qualifying assean asset that necessarily takes a substantiadl egitime to get ready
for its intended use or sale. In accordance ighttansitional requirements in the Standard, #uekBvill adopt this as
a prospective change. Accordingly, borrowing caslisbe capitalised on qualifying assets with antoencement date
after 1 January 2009. No changes will be madbdarowing costs incurred to this date that havenlgagensed.

IFRIC 12 Service Concession Arrangements

IFRIC Interpretation 12 was issued in November 2806 becomes effective for annual periods beginoingr after 1
January 2008. This Interpretation applies to sengoncession operators and explains how to acdourthe
obligations undertaken and rights received in sergoncession arrangements. This Interpretatiooti€xpected to
have any impact on the Bank.

IFRIC 13 Customer Loyalty Programmes

IFRIC Interpretation 13 was issued in June 2007ewbmes effective for annual periods beginningroafter 1 July
2008. This interpretation requires customer Igyait/ard credits to be accounted for as a sepasatpanent of the
sales transaction in which they are granted anefitre part of the fair value of the consideratieceived is allocated
to the award credits and deferred over the petad the award credits are fulfiled. The Bank etpdhat this
interpretation will have no significant impact dretBank’s financial statements.

IFRIC 14 IAS 19- The Limit on a Defined Benefitehshlinimum Funding Requirements and their Intaoact
IFRIC Interpretation 14 was issued in July 2007 aedomes effective for annual periods beginningboafter 1
January 2008. This interpretation provides guidamt how to assess the limit on the amount of ssiripl a defined
benefit scheme that can be recognised as an asdet LAS 19 Employee Benefits. The Bank expects this
Interpretation will have no impact on the finangakition or performance of the Bank.

Significant management judgements and estimates

Judgements

The preparation of the consolidated financial stetets requires management to use its judgementsrahe
estimates and assumptions that may affect the teshamount of financial assets and liabilities eraes, expenses,
disclosure of contingent liabilities and the reantt provisions and fair value for the year. Sustinmtes are
necessarily based on assumptions about severakrdaahd actual results may differ from reported am® as
described below:

Fair value of financial instruments

Where the fair values of financial assets and firarliabilities recorded on the balance sheet oafre derived
from active markets, they are determined usingrietyaof valuation techniques that include the asmathematical
models. The input to these models is taken fronedadble markets where possible, but where thistidaasible, a
degree of judgement is required in establishingvalues. The judgements include consideratioliqofdity and

model inputs such as correlation and volatilitylfarger dated instruments.
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Dubai Islamic Bank (Public Joint Stock Company) &ubsidiaries

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
At 31 December 2007

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION - continued
Significant management judgements and estimates ewtinued
Judgements - continued

Transfer of equitable interest in properties

The Group has entered into a number of contradtstwiyers for the sale of land and apartment ulfemagement
has determined that the equitable interest in sissfets and therefore, risks and rewards of the rshipe are
transferred to the buyer once he is committed tmpdete the payment for the purchase. This commitnigen
evidenced by a signed contract for the purchasthefproperty and payments of sufficient progresgrants.
Based on this, the Group recognises revenues afitsgas the acts to complete the property areopesd.

Classification of investments
Management decides on acquisition of an investméether it should be classified as held to matutisid for
trading, carried at fair value through income staat or available for sale.

For those investments deemed to be held to matunéyagement ensures that the requirements of 8A&& met
and, in particular that the Group has the inten¢ind ability to hold these to maturity.

The Group classifies investments as trading if they acquired primarily for the purpose of makinghart term
profit by the dealers.

Classification of investments as fair value througtome statement depends on how management nmeiiter
performance of these investments. When they arelassified as trading but have readily availadeléable fair
values and the changes in fair values are repa@separt of profit or loss in the management acsuhese are
classified as fair value through income statement.

All other investments are classified as availableshle.

Use of estimates

The preparation of the consolidated financial statets requires management to make estimates auch@tssns
that may affect the reported amount of financialess and liabilities, revenues, expenses, disaosticontingent
liabilities and the resultant provisions and faalue for the year. Such estimates are necesdaabed on
assumptions about several factors and actual sewaly differ from reported amounts as describedviel

Impairment losses on financing and investing assets

The Group reviews its financing and investing asseta regular basis to assess whether a provmiempairment
should be recorded in the income statement iniogldabd any non-performing assets. In particuladgiement by
management is required in the estimation of thewsnhand timing of future cash flows when determinihe level
of provisions required. Such estimates are nedbss@ased on assumptions about the probabilitgefault and
probable losses in the event of default, the vafube underlying security, and realisation costs.

In addition to specific allowance against indivillyasignificant financing and investing assets, @eoup also
makes a collective impairment allowance againsbswpes which, although not specifically identifeesirequiring a
specific allowance, have a greater risk of defthdn when originally granted. This collective allnce is based
on any deterioration in the internal rating of #teset or investment since it was granted or aadjuifdese internal
ratings take into consideration factors such as deterioration in country risk, industry and teclugical
obsolescence, as well as identified structural wes&es or deterioration in cash flows.
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Dubai Islamic Bank (Public Joint Stock Company) &ubsidiaries

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
At 31 December 2007

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION - continued
Significant management judgements and estimates ewtinued
Use of estimates - continued

Valuation of unquoted equity investments
Valuation of unquoted equity investments is norgnBAsed on one of the following:
e recent arm’s length market transaction
» current fair value of another instrument that isstantially the same;
« the expected cash flows discounted at current rapgdicable for items with similar terms and risk
characteristics; or
» other valuation models

The determination of the cash flows and discountofs for unquoted equity investments requires ifiggmt
estimations. The Group calibrates the valuatiahn&ues periodically and tests them for validiging either
prices from observable current market transactiotse same instrument or from other available olzd#e market
data.

Impairment of equity investments

The Group treats available-for-sale equity investiwi@s impaired when there has been a significaptalonged
decline in the fair value below its cost or wherthen objective evidence of impairment exists gividge
consideration to other factors, including normalatitity in share prices for quoted equities and fature cash
flows and the discount factors for unquoted egglitie

Impairment of goodwill

The Group determines whether goodwill is impaireteast on an annual basis. This requires an etstimaf the
value in use of the cash-generating units to wttiehgoodwill is allocated. Estimating the valuause requires the
Group to make an estimate of the expected futwsk ftaws from the cash-generating units.

Costs to complete properties under development

The Group estimates the cost to complete propeirtider development in order to determine the dbsbatable to
revenue being recognised. These estimates inchededst of providing infrastructure activities, @atial claims by
sub contractors and the cost of meeting other aottal obligations to the customers.

Valuation of investment properties
The Group hires the services of third party valdersbtaining estimates of the value of investnmoiperties.

3 DEFINITIONS
The following terms are used in the consolidatedricial statements with the meaning specified:

Murabaha

An agreement whereby the Group sells to a cust@r@mmodity or asset, which the Group has purchased
acquired based on a promise received from the mestto buy the item purchased according to spetfins and
conditions. The selling price comprises the coghefcommodity and an agreed profit margin.

Istisna’a

An agreement between the Group and a customer lhdéhe Group would sell to the customer a developed
property according to agreed upon specificatiortsee Group would develop the property either on i @r
through a subcontractor and then hand it overéatistomer against an agreed price.

ljarah

An agreement whereby the Group (lessor) purchasesrmstructs an asset for lease according to te®mer's
request (lessee), based on his promise to leasastet for a specific period and against certain irsstallments.
ljarah could end by transferring the ownershiphef &sset to the lessee.
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Dubai Islamic Bank (Public Joint Stock Company) &ubsidiaries

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
At 31 December 2007

3 DEFINITIONS - continued

Musharaka

An agreement between the Group and a customerniilmate to a certain investment enterprise, wheéxésting
or new, or the ownership of a certain propertyazithermanently or according to a diminishing aresmgnt ending
up with the acquisition by the customer of the @inership. The profit is shared as per the agraeset between
both parties while the loss is shared in proport@their shares of capital in the enterprise.

Mudaraba

An agreement between the Group and a third pargrelly one party would provide a certain amountuofds,

which the other party (Mudarib) would then invastai specific enterprise or activity against a dpeehare in the
profit. The Mudarib would bear the loss in caselefault, negligence or violation of any of the teramd conditions
of the Mudaraba.

Wakala

An agreement whereby the Group provides a certainaf money to an agent, who invests it accordingpecific
conditions in return for a certain fee (a lump soihmoney or a percentage of the amount investeldd. dgent is
obliged to return the invested amount in case &dudg negligence or violation of any of the teraml conditions of
the Wakala.

Sukuk
These comprise asset backed, Sharia’a complissitdeutificates.

4 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The significant accounting policies adopted in fineparation of the consolidated financial statesemé set out
below:

Revenue recognition

Murabaha
Murabaha income is recognised on a time-apportidrasis over the period of the contract based omptimeipal
amounts outstanding.

Istisna’a
Istisna’a revenue and the associated profit mgdjfference between the cash price of al-masnahéocustomer
and the bank’s total Istisna’a cost) is accountedh a time- apportioned basis.

ljarah
ljarah income is recognised on a time- apportidoesls over the lease term.

Musharaka
Income is accounted for on the basis of the redubalance on a time- apportioned basis that refldnet effective
yield on the asset.

Mudaraba

Income or losses on Mudaraba financing are recedntn an accrual basis if they can be reliablymeggd.
Otherwise, income is recognised on distributiorth®y Mudarib, whereas the losses are charged ton@amn their
declaration by the Mudarib.
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Dubai Islamic Bank (Public Joint Stock Company) &ubsidiaries

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
At 31 December 2007

4 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Revenue recognition (continued)
Sukuk
Income is accounted for on a time-apportioned basés the term of the Sukuk.

Sale of property
Revenue on sale of plots is recognised on the lmdisise full accrual method as and when all of fbkowing
conditions are met:

» Asale is consummated and contracts are signed;

e The buyer’s initial investment, to the date of fimancial statements, is adequate to demonstraterenitment
to pay for the property;

* The Group has transferred to the buyer the usaks rand rewards of ownership in a transaction ithat
substance a sale and does not have a substamigduing involvement with the property.

Revenue on sale of apartments is recognised doettie of percentage completion as and when afieofdllowing

conditions are met:

» Asale is consummated and contracts are signed;

» The buyer’s investment, to the date of the findrst@tements, is adequate to demonstrate a comntitm@ay
for the property;

« Construction is beyond a preliminary stage, i.emmencement of design work or construction contwacite
accessibility etc.

 The buyer is committed. The buyer is unable to ireqa refund except for non-delivery of the unit.
Management believes that the likelihood of the @rdaeing unable to fulfil its contractual obligat®is
remote; and

» The aggregate sales proceeds and costs can beabBsestimated.

Fee and commission income
Fee and commission income is recognised when earned

Rental income
Rental income is recognised on an accrual basis.

Dividends
Dividends from investments in equities are recagphighen the right to receive the dividend is esshbt.

Cost of sale of property

Cost of sale of property includes the cost of land development costs. Development costs includectist of
infrastructure and construction. The cost of saleespect of apartments is based on the estimatgabtion of the
development cost incurred to date to the estimiatiedl development costs for each project.

Balances and deposits with banks and other finandignstitutions
Balances and deposits with banks and other finhimtgéitutions are stated at cost less amountstewribff and
provision for impairment, if any.

International Murabahat short term
International Murabahat short term are stated sitless provisions for impairment and deferreditsof

Islamic financing and investing assets

Islamic financing and investing assets consist ofdbaha receivables, Mudaraba, Musharaka, invesinueler
Sukuk and Wakala arrangements, Istisna’a and lja@firacts. Istisna’a cost is measured and repartetie
consolidated financial statements at a value noeeding the cash equivalent value. Other Islamanting and
investing assets are stated at cost less any posifor impairment and deferred income.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
At 31 December 2007

4 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

Investments in joint ventures

The Group’s interests in joint ventures, which defined as those entities which are subject tot joamtrol, are
accounted for under the proportionate consolidati@thod whereby the Group accounts for its shatheofissets,
liabilities, income and expenses in the joint veesuwon a line by line basis.

The reporting dates of the joint venture and thekBare identical and the joint venture’s accounpinticies conform
to those used by the Bank for like transactionseasshts in similar circumstances.

Properties under construction

Properties in the course of construction for saéectassified as properties under constructionoléhgroperties and
sold properties which have not met the revenuegmtion criteria are stated at the lower of cosnet realisable
value. Sold properties which have met the revaraegnition criteria are stated at cost plus aiteble profit /
(loss) less progress billings and amounts trarefleto cost of sales attributable to revenues razedn Cost
includes the cost of land, infrastructure, constoncand other related expenditure such as prafeskifees and
engineering costs attributable to the project, Wisice capitalised as and when activities that acessary to get the
assets ready for the intended use are in progregect costs from the start of the project up émpletion of the
project are capitalised. Completion is definethasearlier of issuance of a certificate of pradt@ompletion, or when
management considers the project to be complétedn completion, cost in respect to unsold proeeiis eliminated
from properties under construction and transfetoguroperties held for sale.

Properties held for sale

Properties acquired or constructed with the inbentif sale are classified as properties held flarwhen construction
is completed. Properties held for sale are sttedst or at net realisable value, whicheveniglo Cost includes the
cost of land, infrastructure, construction and ptietated expenditure such as professional feesngiheering costs
attributable to the project, which are capitalissdand when the activities that are necessaryttihgeassets ready for
the intended use are in progress. Net realisaie represents the estimated selling price lests ¢o be incurred in
selling the property.

Direct costs from the start of the project up tonptetion of the project are capitalised. Complei®defined as the
earlier of issuance of a certificate of practicaipletion, or when management considers the prtgdot completed.
The cost of land and costs incurred in the coufsdeselopment relating to properties sold during trear are
transferred to cost of revenues.

Investment properties

Properties held for rental or capital appreciaimmposes as well as those held for undeterminadefuise are
classified as investment properties. Investmenpguties are measured at cost less any accumulef@aiation
and any accumulated impairment losses. Depreci&icharged on a straight-line basis over the gsestimated
useful lives.

Investment properties are derecognised when eitlegrhave been disposed of or when the investnmepepty is
permanently withdrawn from use and no future ecandranefit is expected from its disposal. Any gaim losses
on the retirement or disposal of an investment @rypare recognized in the income statement inéDtiperating
income’ in the year of retirement or disposal.

Transfers are made to investment properties whah,oaly when there is change in use evidenced bijngrof
owner-occupation, commencement of an operatinge lemanother party or ending of construction orefigyment.
Transfers are made from investment properties wiaad, only when, there is change in used evidenged b
commencement of owner-occupation or commencemesid\alopment with a view to sale.

Investments in associates

Investments in associates are accounted for uh@eedquity method of accounting and are carriechénltalance
sheet at the lower of the equity-accounted amondtthe recoverable amount. Associates are ergempimn which
the Group generally holds 20% to 50% of the vopinwer or over which it exercises significant infhge.

Trading investments
These are initially recognised at cost and subsgtyueemeasured at fair value. All related realisend unrealised
gains or losses are included in income as gaitssees from trading securities.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
At 31 December 2007

4 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

Non-trading investments

These are classified as follows:

e Held to maturity

* Investments carried at fair value through incoragestent
* Available for sale

All investments are initially recognised at costjriy the fair value of the consideration given uiiihg acquisition
charges associated with the investment.

Held to maturity
Investments which have fixed or determinable paymand fixed maturity and which are intended tohledd to
maturity are carried at amortised cost, less pionifor impairment in value.

Investments carried at fair value through inconaesnent

Investments are classified as fair value througlonme statement if the fair value of the investnet be reliably
measured and the classification as fair value tjinoncome statement is as per the documented gpjratethe
Group. Investments classified as “Investmentatvalue through income statement” upon initialagnition are
remeasured at fair value with all changes in falug being recorded in the income statement.

Available for sale investments

Available for sale financial investments are thedgch are designated as such or do not qualifyetelbssified as
designated at fair value through profit and lossdio maturity or financing and investing assetdey include
equity instruments and investments in mutual funds.

After initial recognition, securities which are stified “available for sale” are normally remeasueg fair value
unless fair value cannot be reliably determinedlich case they are measured at cost less impdirnfiair value
changes are reported as a separate component iy eqtil the security is derecognised or the siguis
determined to be impaired. On derecognition oraimpent, the cumulative gain or loss previouslyortgd as
“cumulative changes in fair value” within equityiigluded in the income statement for the period.

Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment are recorded atlesstaccumulated depreciation and any impairmeveilirne.

Depreciation is provided on a straight-line basisrahe estimated useful lives of all property,npland equipment,
other than freehold land which is deemed to havéndefinite life. The rates of depreciation are dzhsipon the
following estimated useful lives:

» Buildings 15-25 years

e Plant and machinery 15-20 years
*  Furniture and office equipment 3-5 years

e Information technology 3-5 years

* Motor vehicles 3 years

The carrying values of properties and equipments raviewed for impairment when events or changes in
circumstances indicate the carrying value may retrdroverable. If any such indication exists aneénehthe
carrying values exceed the estimated recoverabteiainthe assets are written down to their recdleramount.

Expenditure incurred to replace a component oftam iof property, plant and equipment that is actedirfor
separately is capitalised and the carrying amofititeocomponent that is replaced is written offth€ subsequent
expenditure is capitalised only when it increasgsré economic benefits of the related item of prop plant and
equipment. All other expenditure is recognisethmincome statement as the expense is incurred.
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4 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

Property, plant and equipment - continued

An item of property, plant and equipment is deretsgd upon disposal or when no further economiefisnare
expected from its use or disposal. Any gain os lagsing on derecognition of the asset is incluidetthe income
statement in the year the asset is derecognised.

Goodwill

Goodwill on acquisition is initially measured atstdeing the excess of the cost of acquisition t¢iveracquirer’s
interest in the net fair value of the identifiabdssets, liabilities and contingent liabilities. IBaling initial
recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less angumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is revigvier
impairment annually, or more frequently if eventscbanges in circumstances indicate that the cagryalue may
be impaired.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill @iced in a business combination is from the actjaisidate,
allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generatirits,uar groups of cash-generating units, that aqgeeted to
benefit from the synergies of the combination,Spective of whether other assets and liabilitieshef Group are
assigned to those units or groups of units. Eadtougroup of units to which the goodwill is sdaalated:

» represents the lowest level within the Group atcWwhihe goodwill is monitored for internal
management purposes; and

» is not larger than a segment based on either tlwp@ primary or the Group’s secondary
reporting format determined in accordance with BMSSegment Reporting.

Where goodwill forms part of a cash-generating gioup of cash-generating units) and part of theration
within that unit is disposed of, the goodwill assbed with the operation disposed of is includedhia carrying
amount of the operation when determining the gailogs on disposal of the operation. Goodwill dsgb of in this
circumstance is measured based on the relativeesadi the operation disposed of and the portiothefcash-
generating unit retained.

Provisions
Provisions are recognised when the Group has agatibh (legal or constructive) arising from a pegént, and the
costs to settle the obligation are both probabdeadate to be reliably measured.

Deposits
Customer deposits and due to banks and other fadanstitutions are carried at cost.

Employees’ end of service benefits

With respect to its U.A.E. national employees, @rwup makes contributions to a pension fund estabtl by the
General Pension and Social Security Authority dated as a percentage of the employees’ salarhes.Group’s
obligations are limited to these contributions,athére recognised in the consolidated income statewhen due.

The Group provides end of service benefits totheoemployees. The entitlement to these bensfiiased upon the
employees’ salary and length of service, subjetitéccompletion of a minimum service period. Tkpeeted costs of
these benefits are accrued over the period of gmaot.

Taxation
Taxation is provided in accordance with the fisegulations of the respective countries in which@roup operates.

Deferred income taxation is provided using theiliigbmethod on all temporary differences at théabae sheet date.
Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are oredsat the tax rates that are expected to apphetperiod when the
asset is realised or the liability is settled, base laws that have been enacted at the balaneedste.
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4 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

Taxation - continued

The carrying amount of deferred income tax assetviewed at each balance sheet date and redutiesl éxtent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxablefiiwill be available to allow all or part of theferred income tax asset
to be utilised.

Zakat

Zakat is computed as per the Articles and Memomandé Association of the Bank and its subsidiaries &

approved by the Fatwa and Sharia’'a Supervisory d@oaf the respective entities on the following basi

e Zakat on shareholders’ equity is deducted from rthividends and is computed on their zakat pool
(shareholders’ equity less paid up capital, dondéedi reserve and cumulative changes in fair vaple$
employees’ end of service benefits.

e Zakat on profit equalisation provision is chargedhis provision after it has been calculated.

e Zakat is disbursed by a committee appointed byBiha&rd of Directors and operating as per the bydatvby
the Board.

» Zakat on the paid up capital is not included inzakat computations and is payable directly bystiereholders
themselves.

Allocation of profit
Allocation of profits between depositors and shalddrs is calculated according to the Group’s stethghrocedures
and is approved by the Bank’s Sharia’a SuperviS8argrd.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of preparation of the consolidatatement of cash flows, cash and cash equivadeatsonsidered
to be cash and balances with central banks, due lienks and international Murabahat. Cash equitekme short-
term liquid investments that are readily convedtilbtd known amounts of cash with original maturitedsthree

months or less.

Trade and settlement date accounting

All “regular way” purchase and sales of financissets are recognised on the settlement datehé elate the asset
is delivered to the counterparty. Regular way pases or sales are purchases or sales of finaassets that
require delivery of assets within the time framenagally established by regulation or conventiortha market
place.

Forfeited income

According to the Sharia'a Supervisory Boards, theup is required to identify any income deemed éadbrived
from sources not acceptable under Islamic Sharegalations and to set aside such amount in a g&paccount
used to pay for local social activities (forfeit@dome).

Fiduciary assets
Assets held in trust or in a fiduciary capacity aot treated as assets of the Group and accordangiyot included
in these consolidated financial statements.

Offsetting

Financial assets and financial liabilities are ooffiget and the net amount reported in the balaheet when there
is a legally enforceable right to set off the ratisgd amounts and the Group intends to eithelesettla net basis,
or to realise the asset and settle the liabilityudianeously.

Impairment and uncollectibility of financial assets

An assessment is made at each balance sheet ddg¢¢etmine whether there is objective evidence dhspecific
financial asset or group of financial assets mayirbpaired. If such evidence exists, an impairmess is
recognised in the income statement.

Evidence of impairment may include indications tlila¢ borrower or a group of borrowers is experiegci
significant financial difficulty, default or delingncy in profit or principal payments, the probipithat they will
enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisatiord where observable data indicate that there neasurable
decrease in the estimated future cash flows, saathanges in arrears or economic conditions thaklkede with
defaults.
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4 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

Impairment and uncollectibility of financial assets- continued

In addition to the provision for specific impair@d/esting and financing assets, collective provisiare made to
cover impairment against specific group of assdiere there is a measurable decrease in estimatiee ftash
flows.

Impairment is determined as follows:

(a) for assets carried at amortised cost, impaitneefased on present value of estimated futuré dasvs
discounted at the original effective profit rate;

(b) for assets carried at fair value, impairmerhéesdifference between cost and fair value; and

(c) for assets carried at cost, impairment is basethe present value of estimated future cashsfidiacounted at
the current market rate of return for a similagafinial asset.

Renegotiated credit facilities

Where possible, the Bank seeks to restructuretoe@gbsures rather than to take possession otterdla This may
involve extending the payment arrangements anddheement of new credit conditions. Once the térave been
renegotiated, the credit exposure is no longeridensd past due. Management continuously reviewsgotiated
facilities to ensure that all criteria are met dmalt future payments are likely to occur. Thelfties continue to be
subject to an individual or collective impairmessassment, calculated using the facilities origaftactive profit
rate.

Derecognition of financial assets and financial lhilities

Financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable a part dinancial asset or part of a group of similar fin&l assets) is

derecognised where:

» the rights to receive cash flows from the asseetepired; or

« the Group has transferred its rights to receivé ¢iasvs from the asset or has assumed an obligatigray the
received cash flows in full without material detaya third party under a ‘pass-through’ arrangenmemd

» either (a) the Group has transferred substantallyhe risks and rewards of the asset, or (b)Ghheup has
neither transferred nor retained substantiallytedlrisks and rewards of the asset, but has traadfeontrol of
the asset.

Financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the galtion under the liability is discharged or careglbr expires.
Where an existing financial liability is replaced &#nother from the same lender on substantialfgiift terms, or
the terms of an existing liability are substanyiathodified, such an exchange or modification isated as a
derecognition of the original liability and the ogmition of a new liability, and the difference tine respective
carrying amounts is recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group assesses at each reporting date whatireris an indication that an asset may be impailedny such
indication exists, or when annual impairment tesfior an asset is required, the Group makes amaitstiof the
asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s recovesahtrint is the higher of an asset’s or cash-gangranit’s fair

value less costs to sell and its value in use andetermined for an individual asset, unless tlsetadoes not
generate cash inflows that are largely independktitose from other assets or groups of assets.

Where the carrying amount of an asset exceed®disverable amount, the asset is considered impainddis
written down to its recoverable amount.

Impairment losses of continuing operations are gaised in the income statement in those expensyades
consistent with the function of the impaired assgtept for property previously revalued whererthaluation was
taken to equity. In this case the impairment isoatecognised in equity up to the amount of anwiptes
revaluation.

For assets excluding goodwill, an assessment i rmadach reporting date as to whether there isnaigation that
previously recognised impairment losses may nodomgist or may have decreased. If such indicatiists, the
Group makes an estimate of the recoverable amount.
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4 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

Impairment of non-financial assets - continued

A previously recognised impairment loss is reversetly if there has been a change in the estimasesl to
determine the asset’s recoverable amount sincdatftempairment loss was recognised. If that i thse the
carrying amount of the asset is increased to iteverable amount. That increased amount cannaeexthe
carrying amount that would have been determinetlphdepreciation, had no impairment loss beengeised for
the asset in prior years. Such reversal is resednin the income statement unless that assetriectat revalued
amount, in which case the reversal is treated mvauation increase. Impairment losses recogrisedlation to
goodwill are not reversed for subsequent increasiés recoverable amount.

The following criteria are also applied in assegsmpairment of specific assets:

Goodwill
Goodwill is reviewed for impairment, annually or radrequently if events or changes in circumstarindgate
that the carrying value may be impaired.

Impairment is determined for goodwill by assesdh®yrecoverable amount of the cash-generating(onigroup of
cash-generating units), to which the goodwill retat Where the recoverable amount of the cash-gémgunit (or
group of cash-generating units) is less than theyicg amount of the cash-generating unit (groupcasgh-
generating units) to which goodwill has been altedaan impairment loss is recognised. Impairnesges relating
to Goodwill cannot be reversed in future period$ie Group performs its annual impairment test afdyall as at
31 December.

Associates

After application of the equity method, the Grougtedmines whether it is necessary to recognisedditianal
impairment loss of the Group’s investments in #sagiates. The Group determines at each balarsd dhate
whether there is any objective evidence that thestment in associate is impaired. If this is ¢hee the Group
calculates the amount of impairment as being tHferdnce between the fair value of the associatk the
acquisition cost and recognises the amount inrtbeme statement.

Foreign exchange contracts

Foreign exchange contracts are stated at fair valle fair value of a foreign exchange contrat¢hésequivalent of
the unrealised gain or loss from marking to matket contract using prevailing market rates. Foragchange
contracts with positive market value (unrealiseth)gare included in other assets and contracts nétfative market
value (unrealised losses) are included in othéiliiees in the balance sheet.

ESOP shares

ESOP shares consist of the Bank’s own shares that heen acquired by the Bank under its EmployeekSt
Ownership Plan and not yet reissued or cancellbds& shares are accounted for using the cost methoder the
cost method, the average cost of the shares isnshswa deduction from total shareholders’ equity.

Share-based payments
Employees (including senior employees) of the Bagdeive remuneration in the form of equity-setbdre based
payments.

The cost of equity-settled transactions with emeésyis measured by reference to the fair valugeadate on which
they are granted. The cost of equity-settled tretias is recognized, together with a correspondingease in
equity, over the period in which the employeesisereonditions are fulfilled (“the vesting period”)

Foreign currencies

Transactions in foreign currencies are recordedais of exchange prevailing at the dates of thmsactions.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated iniéprecurrencies at the balance sheet date are ezpait the
exchange rates prevailing at that date. Any gailoss arising from changes in exchange rates gulese to the
date of a transaction is recognised in the conatdilincome statement.

Assets and liabilities of foreign operations ar¢ de@emed an integral part of the head office’s afi@ns and are
translated at rates of exchange ruling at the lbalaheet date. Income and expense items aredtehsit average
exchange rates for the period. Any exchange diffees are taken directly to a foreign currencysiedion
adjustment reserve.
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4 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

Financial guarantees

In the ordinary course of business, the Bank giieencial guarantees consisting of letters of drelditers of
guarantees, and acceptances. Financial guarareastially recognised in the financial statenseait fair value, in
“Other liabilities”. Subsequent to initial recotjon, the Bank’s liabilities under such guarantaeseach measured
at the higher of the initial fair value less, wtegspropriate, cumulative amortisation calculatedeimognise the fee
in the income statement in ‘Net fees and commissioame’ over the term of the guarantee, and ttst égtimate
of the expenditure required to settle any financkdigation arising as a result of the guarantee.

Any increase in the liability relating to financigliarantees is taken to the income statement iavi§lons for
impairment”. Any financial guarantee liability raming is recognised in the income statement int ‘fées and
commission income’ when the guarantee is discharcgttelled or expires.

Segment reporting

A segment is a distinguishable component of theu@rhat is engaged either in providing productsenvices
(business segment), or in providing products ovises within a particular economic environment (@agphical
segment), which is subject to risks and rewards daha different from those of other segments. Segrincome,
segment expenses and segment performance inchr#ers between business segments and betweerapkicgt
segments.

Fair values

For investments actively traded in organised fimgnmarkets, fair value is determined by referetweguoted
market prices at the close of business on the balaheet date. Bid prices are used for assetsféardpoces are
used for liabilities.

Unquoted available for sale investments are camatecbst, less provision for impairment, due to uheredictable
nature of future cash flows and the lack of sugadther methods for arriving at a reliable fairual

For investments in properties, fair value is debeeah periodically on the basis of independent msitanal valuations.

The fair value of foreign exchange contracts iscwaked by reference to foreign exchange rates wiittilar
maturities.
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5 INCOME FROM ISLAMIC FINANCING AND INVESTING ASSET S
2007 2006

AED’000 AED'000
Financing assets
Commodities murabahat 468,140 375,529
International murabahat 156,616 164,459
Vehicles murabahat 308,582 230,905
Real estate murabahat 321,448 164,457
Total murabahat income 1,254,786 935,350
Istisna’a 216,851 142,933
ljara 504,558 315,874
Income from financing assets 1,976,195 1,394,157
Investing assets
Sukuks 513,213 211,255
Musharakat 400,469 228,457
Mudarabat 236,601 167,384
Wakalat 66,989 232,097
Others 21,016 56,208
Income from investing assets 1,238,288 895,401

Total income from Islamic financing and investirggets 3,214,483 2,289,558

Others amounting to AED 21,016,000 (2006: AED 58,200) are presented net of forfeited income of AED
10,532,904 (2006: AED 7,977,000).

6 INCOME FROM OTHER INVESTMENTS
2007 2006
AED’000 AED’000
Loss on trading investments - (35,354)
Income from available for sale investment 162,695 40,558
Gain on sale of investments carried at fair valweugh income statement 166,089 160,519
Gain / (loss) on revaluation of investments cardethir value through
income statement 169,026 (52,777)
Realised gain on disposal of available for saled#tments 116,430 -
Dividend income 94,487 39,028
708,727 151,974
7 COMMISSIONS, FEES AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE INCOME
2007 2006
AED’000 AED'000
Trade related commission and fees 290,303 226,654
Other commissions and fees 414,275 643,158
Foreign exchange gains 93,749 36,904

798,327 906,716
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8 INCOME FROM INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
2007
AED’000
Rental income 49,090
Gain on sale of investment properties 138,549
187,639
9 INCOME FROM SALE OF PROPERTIES UNDER CONSTRUCTION
2007
AED’000
Revenue 652,186
Cost of sale (note 20) (510,855)
141,331
10 PERSONNEL EXPENSES
2007
AED’000
Salaries and wages 635,421
Staff terminal benefits 20,798
Share based payments 36,847
Others 173,436
866,502
Number of employees at 31 December 6894
11 GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES
2007
AED’000
Administrative expenses 249,887
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 85,539
Rental charges payable under operating leases 47,649
Other operating expenses 208,911
Goodwill written off -
591,986

2006
AED'000

44,567
108,636

153,203

2006
AED'000

978,227

(565,517)

412,710

2006
AED'000

435,267
15,177
30,312

155,955

636,711

5890

2006
AED'000

196,931
56,553
31,486

221,083

5,410

511,463

25



Dubai Islamic Bank (Public Joint Stock Company) &ubsidiaries

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

At 31 December 2007

12 PROVISIONS FOR IMPAIRMENT

Investing assets (note 17)
Financing assets (note 17)
Investments in associates (note 18)
Other investments (note 19)
Receivables and other assets

13 DEPOSITORS’ SHARE OF PROFITS

Share for the year, including share of gain ondfemof subsidiary
Less: Pertaining to depositors’ profit equalisafiwavision (Note 43)
Transfer (to) / from depositors’ profit equalisatiprovision (Note 43)

Less: Paid during the year

Depositors’ share of profit payable (Note 31)

Share of profits accrued to customers and finamesitutions is as follows:
Investment and savings deposits from customers

Wakala and other investment deposits from banksastbmers
Profit accrued on sukuks

14 BASIC AND DILUTED EARNINGS PER SHARE

2007
AED’000

(870)
269,475
21,926
16,961
(6,024)

301,468

2007
AED’000

2,707,809
(15,657)
(317,300)

2,374,852

(1,766,872)

607,980

2,187,224
389,602
130,983

2,707,809

2006
AED'000

(16,707)
60,012
27,500

1,751
3,911

76,467

2006
AED'000

1,757,611
(6,152)
50,000

1,801,459

(1,270,203)

531,256

1,260,655
496,956

1,757,611

Basic and diluted earnings per share are calculayedividing the net profit for the year by the gleied average

number of shares outstanding during the year &sxsi

Profit for the year net of directors’ remuneration
of AED 5,350,000 (2006: AED 5,350,000)
Weighted average number of shares of AED 1 each
outstanding during the year

Basic and diluted earnings per share

2007

2,495,071,000

2,996,000,000

AED 0.83

2006

1,554,743,000

2,396,031,062

AED 0.65

The earnings per share of AED 0.71 as reporte@®6 has been adjusted for the effect of the shasegd in

2007 as a result of the scrip dividend.

The figures for basic and diluted earnings pereslithe same as the Bank has not issued anyrmestts which

would have an impact on earnings per share wherisgd.
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15 CASH AND BALANCES WITH CENTRAL BANKS

2007 2006
AED’000 AED'000
Cash in hand 1,027,859 826,720
Balances with central banks:
- Current accounts 813,684 54,307
- Reserve requirements 3,064,114 2,230,697
4,905,657

3,111,724

The reserve requirements are kept with the Celteaks of UAE, Pakistan and Sudan in the respedtiel
currencies and the US Dollar. These reserves atravailable for use in the Bank’s day to day operns, and
cannot be withdrawn without the approval of thepessive Central Banks. The level of reserve reglithanges
every month in accordance with the requirementi®fespective Central Banks’ directives.

16 BALANCES AND DEPOSITS WITH BANKS AND OTHER FINAN CIAL INSTITUTIONS

2007 2006
AED’000 AED'000
Current accounts 673,802 407,245
Investment deposits 512,855 -
1,186,657 407,245
17 ISLAMIC FINANCING AND INVESTING ASSETS
2007 2006
AED’000 AED'000
Financing
Commodities Murabahat 8,886,839 7,091,886
International Murabahat, long term 2,460,370 3,598,780
Vehicles Murabahat 4,979,679 3,877,829
Real Estate Murabahat 5,739,230 3,499,405
Total Murabahat 22,066,118 18,067,900
Istisna’a 6,606,312 4,452,347
ljara 9,029,289 6,038,210
Islamic credit cards 257,372 161,060
37,959,091 28,719,517
Less: Deferred income (4,190,559) (2,919,571)
Contractors and consultants’ Istisna’a contracts (1,786,179) (1,471,737)
Provisions for impairment (1,046,662) (802,366)
30,935,691 23,525,843
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17 ISLAMIC FINANCING AND INVESTING ASSETS - continu ed

Investing
Sukuk
Musharakat
Mudarabat
Wakalat

Less: Provisions for impairment

Total Islamic financing and investing assets, net

2007
AED’000

8,511,759
3,808,029
5,506,302

204,067

18,030,157

(78,007)

17,952,150

3887,841

Gross Islamic financing and investing assets byomuhical area are as follows:

Within U.A.E.
Outside U.A.E.

2007
AED’000

39,640,058
10,372,452

50,012,510

2006
AED'000

5,764,652
2,832,292
3,053,780

185,257

11,835,981

(78,877)

11,757,104

35,282,947

2006
AED'000

19,329,558
16,834,632

36,164,190

Islamic financing and investing assets by indugtgup before provision for impairment are as fokow

Financial institutions

Real estate

Trade

Government

Manufacturing and services
Personal financing and others

Provisions for impairment

Movements in the provision for impairment are dbofes:

2007

Balance, beginning of the year

Charge for the year (note 12)

Release to the income statement (note 12)
Write-offs

Balance, end of the year
Gross amount of financing and investing assets,

individually determined to be impaired, before
deducting any individually assessed impairmentaioce

2007
AED’000
3,796,467
18,559,791
3,969,033
4,503,577
12,256,622
6,927,020
50,012,510
Financing Investing
AED’000 AED’000
802,366 78,877
325,056 6,798
(55,581) (7,668)
(25,179) -
1,046,662 78,007
1,604,424 80,321

2006
AED'000

3,486,879
10,652,339
6,489,245
3,719,212
7,586,746
4,229,769

36,164,190

Total
AED'000

ML, 2
331,854

(63,249)

(25,179)

1,124,669

1,684,745
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17 ISLAMIC FINANCING AND INVESTING ASSETS - continu ed

Financing Investing Total
2006 AED’000 AED’000 AED'000
Balance, beginning of the year 746,279 95,584 &AL,8
Charge for the year (note 12) 120,076 - 120,076
Release to the income statement (note 12) (60,064) (16,707) (76,771)
Write-offs (3,925) - (3,925)
Balance, end of the year 802,366 78,877 881,243
Gross amount of financing and investing assets,
individually determined to be impaired, before

deducting any individually assessed impairmentaioce 1,310,919 105,417 1,416,336

Collateral

The Group, in the ordinary course of providing fina, holds collateral as security to mitigate dradk associated
with investing and financing assets. This collatenostly includes savings and investment depoSitancial
guarantees, equities, real estate and other fiseeta

The fair value of collateral that the Bank holdiatiag to facilities individually determined to bempaired at 31
December 2007 amounts to AED 384,050,000 (2006: AE®453,000).

During the year, the bank took possession of varionderlying assets, primarily vehicles. The Baak sold
repossessed assets amounting to AED 3,199,2006( AED 1,725,000 which has been adjusted against the
outstanding receivable.

18 INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES
Investments in associated companies comprise:
2007 2006
AED’000 AED'000
Share in capital and financing 3,573,871 1,064,370
Share of profits 217,151 13,531
Less: provision for impairment (49,426) (27,500)
3,741,596 1,050,401
Provision for impairment of investments in associas
2007 2006
AED’000 AED'000
Balance, beginning of the year 27,500 -
Charge for the year (note 12) 21,926 27,500

Balance, end of the year 49,426 27,500
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18 INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES - continued

The following table illustrates summarised inforioatof the Bank’s investments in associates:

Share of associates’ balance sheets:
Assets
Liabilities

Net assets

Share of associates’ revenues and results:
Revenues

Results

19 OTHER INVESTMENTS

Trading investments
Investments carried at fair value through incoragesbent
Available for sale investments

Trading investments

Equities - quoted

Investments carried at fair value through income saitement

Equities - quoted

Available for sale investments comprise the followig:

Quoted equities — local
Unquoted equities:

Local
Foreign

Less: Provision for impairment

2007
AED’000

5,672,867

(1,931,271)

3,741,596

419,711

203,462

2007
AED’000

820,849
3,390,028

4,210,877

2007
AED’000

2007
AED’000

820,849

2007
AED’000

2,256,750

269,482
894,653

1,164,135

(30,857)

1,133,278

3,390,028

2006
AED'000

1,251,176
(173,275)

1,077,901

11,200

16,148

2006
AED'000

47,849
1,021,332
2,454,763

3,523,944

2006
AED'000

47,849

2006
AED'000

1,021,332

2006
AED'000

859,224

136,175

1,474,263

1,610,438
(14,899)

1,595,539

2,454,763

30



Dubai Islamic Bank (Public Joint Stock Company) &ubsidiaries

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
At 31 December 2007

19 OTHER INVESTMENTS - continued

Unquoted available for sale investments are camatetbst, less provision for impairment, due to uhpredictable
nature of future cash flows and the lack of sugaither methods for arriving at a reliable fairuel

Movements in the provision for impairment of availeble for sale investments are as follows:

2007 2006
AED’000 AED'000
Balance, beginning of the year 14,899 13,148
Charge for the year (note 12) 23,961 1,751
Release to the income statement (note 12) (7,000) -
Write-offs (1,003) -
Balance, end of the year 30,857 14,899
20 PROPERTIES UNDER CONSTRUCTION
The movement in properties under construction dutfie year was as follows:
2007 2006
AED’000 AED'000
Balance, beginning of year 2,171,004 411,092
Additions during the year 981,345 2,325,429
Less: Transferred to cost of sale of propertiese(9) (510,855) (565,517)
Less: Transferred to Deyaar PJSC (hote 27) (2,641,494) -
Balance, end of year - 2,171,004

21 PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE

Properties held for sale represent properties iypEthat are registered in the name of certain ididrges of the
Bank.

22 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
2007 2006
AED’000 AED'000
Land
In U.AE. 1,171,537 474,232
Outside U.A.E. 67,049 67,049
1,238,586 541,281
Less: Provision for impairment (300) (300)

1,238,286 540,981
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22 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES - continued
2007
AED’000
Other real estate
In U.A.E. 304,923
Outside U.AE. 47,085
352,008
Less: Accumulated depreciation and provision fguaimment (90,991)
261,017
Investment properties, net 1,499,303

2006
AED'000

298,014
2,713

300,727
(80,495)

220,232

761,213

The fair value of the Group’s investment propertieof 31 December 2007 is AED 2,538,722,000 (20D
1,467,952,000) as per valuations conducted by ienidgnt valuers and the Group’s real estate division

Land in the UAE includes land valued at AED 276,08@ (2006: AED 286,951,000) donated by the

Government which has been allocated for the salefiteof the shareholders.

The movement in investment properties is as follows

2007
Other
Land Real Estate
AED ‘000 AED ‘000

Cost:

Balance, beginning of the year 541,281 300,727

Additions during the year 987,107 51,281

Transfer during the year - 24,417

Disposals during the year (289,802) (24,417)
Balance, end of the year 1,238,586 352,008
Accumulated depreciation/provision for impairment:

Balance, beginning of the year 300 80,495

Relating to transfer - 2,145

Charge for the year - 10,500

Relating to disposals - (2,149)
Balance, end of the year 300 90,991
Net book value:

31 December 2007 1,238,286 261,017

Total
AED ‘000

842,008
1,038,388
24,417

(314,219)

1,59@,59

80,795

2,145
10,500
(2,149)

91,291

1,499,303
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22 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES - continued

2006

Cost:

Balance, beginning of the year
Additions during the year
Disposals during the year

Balance, end of the year

Accumulated depreciation/provision for impairment:

Balance, beginning of the year
Charge for the year
Relating to disposals

Balance, end of the year

Net book value:
31 December 2006

23 RECEIVABLES AND OTHER ASSETS

Income receivable

Rental income receivable
Trade receivables

Cheques sent for collection
Advances to contractors
Inventories

Prepaid expenses

Qard Hassan (profit-free loans)
Overdrawn current accounts, net
Deferred taxation (note 32)
Others

Other
Land Real Estate Total
AED ‘000 AED ‘000 AED ‘000
503,319 333,922 perg
180,570 22,946 203,516
(142,608) (56,141) (198,749)
541,281 300,727 842,008
300 87,656 87,956
- 10,240 10,240
- (17,401) (17,401)
300 80,495 80,795
540,981 220,232 761,213
2007 2006
AED’000 AED'000
774,518 612,367
120,104 88,989
34,638 269,919
240,825 159,986
30,811 156,970
250,256 79,463
55,448 76,340
8,000 12,561
4,833 2,332
28,109 13,009
680,177 993,187
2,227,719 2,465,123

Overdrawn current accounts are stated net of poovidor impairment of AED 25,679,000 (2006: AED

28,949,000).

Inventories pertain to subsidiaries and are statdéke lower of cost and net realizable value.
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24 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

2007

Cost:
As of 1 January 2007
Additions
Disposals
Other transfers
Exchange adjustments

Balance as of 31 December 2007

Accumulated depreciation:
As of 1 January 2007
Charge for the year
Disposals
Other transfers
Exchange adjustments

Balance as of 31 December 2007

Net book value and carrying value:
31 December 2007

Land Plant Furniture
and and and office
buildings machinery equipment
AED’000 AED’000 AED’000
306,835 79,868 240,292
1,187 3,064 114,767
(73,047) (2,128) (13,013)
(24,417) - 23,486
870 (22) (167)
211,428 80,782 5,3
36,411 46,659 119,039
3,526 3,847 57,990
(1,552) (1,347) (5,085)
(2,145) - -
26 (D) 15
36,266 49,158 171,959
175,162 31,624 193,406

Information Motor Construction
technology vehicles n progress Total
AED’000 AED’000 AED’000 AEIDO
75,20 26,727 29,851 758,775
47,440 9,904 153,194 329,556
(5,991) (7,861) (836) (102,876)
485 - (23,971) (24,417)
66 (40) (134) 573
117,202 28,730 158,104 961,611
49,562 11,503 - 263,174
15,265 114,9 - 85,539
(2,318) (5,369) - (15,671)
- - - (2,145)
- 7 - 47
62,509 11,052 - 330,944
54,693  ,67B7 158,104 630,667
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24 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT - continued

2006
Land Plant Furniture
and and and office Information Motor
buildings machinery equipment technology vehicles
AED’000 AED’000 AED’000 AED’000 AED’000
Cost:
As of 1 January 2006 277,276 76,805 157,471 @0,65 18,214
Additions 1,141 3,778 75,134 17,530 7,989
Disposals (10,274) (440) (1,566) (3,053) (699)
Other transfers (42) (275) 6,676 74 -
Exchange adjustments 38,733 - 2,577 - 23,2
Balance as of 31 December 2006 306,835 79,868 ,2940 75,202 26,727
Accumulated depreciation:
As of 1 January 2006 29,644 45,266 82,875 41,487 7,739
Charge for the year 6,405 1,776 35,949 8,423 04,00
Disposals (195) (383) (778) (348) (696)
Exchange adjustments 557 - 993 - 460
Balance as of 31 December 2006 36,411 46,659 0329, 49,562 11,503
Net book value and carrying value:
31 December 2006 270,424 33,209 121,253 25,640 ,2245

In the opinion of management, there are no indicatof impairment losses.

Construction
n progress Total
AED’000 AEDO
18,359 608,776
18,671 124,243
,745) (21,778)
(1,281) 5,153
(152) 42,381
29,851 758,775
- 207,011
- 56,553
- (2,400)
- 2,010
- 263,174
29,851 495,601
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25 GOODWILL

2007 2006
AED’000 AED'000
At 1 January 36,910 42,320
Written off during the year - (5,410)
At 31 December 36,910 36,910

Impairment testing of goodwill

Goodwill acquired through a business combinationlfeen allocated to Bank of Khartoum as a cashrgimg unit for
impairment testing.

The recoverable amount of the cash-generatingisidigtermined based on a value in use calculatising cash flow
projections based on financial budgets approveddnior management. The key assumptions of the valuse
calculations are those regarding growth rates apdaed changes to selling prices and direct ahsigsg the period.
The growth rates are based on management estitmatery regard to industry growth rates. Changaadome and
direct costs are based on past practices and etjpast of future changes in the market.

For the year ended 31 December 2007, in respeBank of Khartoum, there have been no events orggsaim
circumstances to indicate carrying values may hpairad.
26 INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES

The Group’s 50% share of assets and liabilitieghia joint ventures included in the consolidatedaficial
statements are as under:

2007 2006

AED’000 AED'000
Cash and balances with banks 9,371 7,943
Islamic financing and investing assets 4,275 4,480
Receivables and other assets 28,669 5,977
Property, plant and equipment 3,574 4,149
Total assets 45,889 22,549
Other liabilities 10,284 8,051
Profit for the year 25,345 20,697
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27  TRANSFER OF INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARY

The Group transferred its entire interest in Deya@velopment Company P.S.C. (a subsidiary compangaged in
real estate development to Deyaar Development R3HE 30 May 2007 for a consideration of AED 2,600,000
to be settled by the issue of 2,600,000,000 skl&#rA&ED 1 each in Deyaar Development PJSC.

The assets and liabilities of Deyaar Developmemhmy P.S.C. as of 30 May 2007 and 31 December 8606 as

follows:

Audited
30 May 31 Dec
2007 2006

AED’000 AED’000
Property, plant and equipment 14,956 12,032
Properties under construction 2,641,494 2,159,771
Accounts and notes receivable 245,267 261,567
Prepayments and other assets 382,079 211,231
Bank balances and cash 584,598 389,546
Total assets 3,868,394 3,034,147
Employees’ end of service benefits 2,805 4,401
Retention payable 44,531 35,467
Islamic finance obligations 857,038 235,333
Term loan 1,346 1,041
Accounts payable and accruals 1,327,875 1,121,605
Minority interest 3,763 5,264
Total liabilities 2,237,358 1,403,111
Net assets 1,631,036 1,631,036

Consideration 2,600,000
Gain arising on transfer 968,964
28 CUSTOMERS’ DEPOSITS
2007 2006
AED’000 AED'000
a) By Type

Current accounts 13,804,657 9,264,286
Saving accounts 8,730,070 5,733,414
Investment deposits 41,619,982 32,065,814
Margin accounts 450,800 579,724

Profit equalisation provision (note 43) 411,319 89,244
65,016,828 47,732,482
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28 CUSTOMERS’ DEPOSITS - continued

b) By contractual maturity:
Demand deposits
Deposits due within 3 months
Deposits due within 6 months
Deposits due within 1 year
Deposits due over 1 year

¢) By geographical areas:
Within U.A.E.
Outside U.A.E.

d) By currency:
U.A.E. Dirham

Other currencies, mainly Sudanese Dinar and DoBars

29 DUE TO BANKS AND OTHER FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS

Current accounts
Investment deposits

30 SUKUKS

2007
AED’000

16,299,754
27,040,433
2,333,038
17,998,356
1,345,247

65,016,828

59,439,543
5,577,285

65,016,828

53,005,059

12,011,769

65,016,828

2007
AED’000

240,660
2,000,662

2,241,322

2006
AED'000

14,887,667
18,668,425
5,058,889
8,345,976
771,525

47,732,482

39,722,859
8,009,623

47,732,482

36,444,847

11,287,635

47,732,482

2006
AED'000

199,921
4,449,979

4,649,900

During the year the Bank, through a sharia’a coamplSukuk Financing arrangement, raised medium figignce
amounting to AED 2,754,750,000 (USD750 million)heTsukuks are listed on the Dubai Internationabiémal

Exchange and the London Stock Exchange.

The terms of the arrangement include transfer ofaoe identified assets (“the Co Owned Assets”)ludig
original leased and musharakat assets, Shariaaliemiguthorized investments and any replaced sigdd¢he Bank
to a Sukuk company, DIB Sukuk Company Limited — igsuer, specially formed for the sukuk transactidre
assets are in the control of the Bank and shaliimos to be serviced by the Bank. The sukuk geatiés mature in

2012.

The issuer will pay the quarterly distribution ambfrom returns received in respect of the Co Owhaisskets. Such
proceeds are expected to be sufficient to coveqtiagterly distribution amount payable to the sukalders on the

quarterly distribution dates. Upon maturity of thekuks, the Bank has undertaken to repurchasasttets at the

exercise price of USD 750 million.

The sukuks bear a variable profit rate payabldéoivestors based on market rate plus a margich Brofits are

payable on a quarterly basis.
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31 OTHER LIABILITIES

Depositors’ share of profit (note 13)
Payable for properties

Bankers cheques

Cheques received for collection
Sundry deposits

Trade payables

Rent received in advance

Provision for employees’ end-of-service benefits

Retentions payable

Unclaimed dividends
Provision for taxation (note 32)
Directors’ remuneration
Payable to contractors

Others

32 TAXATION

Provision for taxation

Opening balance
Current period charge
Taxes paid

Exchange adjustments

Closing balance

Deferred tax asset

Deferred tax asset at beginning of the year
Additions during the year

Deferred tax asset at the end of the year

Tax reversal / (charge) for the year

Current taxation
Deferred taxation

Deferred tax asset at the end of the year

2007
AED’000

607,980
336,393
453,968
209,148
381,704
18,229
88,468
60,256

35,272
3,484
5,350
6,082

724,866

2,931,200

2007
AED’000

37,823

952
(35,291)

3,484

2007
AED’000

13,009
15,100

28,109

2007
AED’000

(952)
15,100

14,148

2006
AED'000

531,256
965,165
270,927
154,213
171,040
130,092
51,790
50,025
42,746
26,820
37,823
5,350
3,264
714,758

3,155,269

2006
AED'000

33,965
12,122
(11,553)

3,289

37,823

2006
AED'000

7,009
6,000

13,009

2006
AED'000

(12,122)
6,000

(6,122)
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33 ACCRUED ZAKAT

2007 2006
AED’000 AED'000
Zakat on shareholders’ equity
(except for share capital and donated land reyerve 118,660 69,672
Zakat on profit equalisation provision (note 43) 10,882 2,363
129,542 72,035
34 SHARE CAPITAL
2007 2006
Number of Amount in Number of Amount in
shares “000” AED “000” shares “000” AED “000
Authorised
Ordinary shares of AED 1 each 3,000,000 3,000,000 3,000,000 3,000,000
Issued and fully paid up
At 1 January 2,800,000 2,800,000 1,500,000 1,500,000
Rights issue during the year - - 1,000,000 1,000,000
Bonus shares 196,000 196,000 300,000 300,000
At 31 December 2,996,000 2,996,000 2,800,000 2,800,000

During the year, 196 million shares of AED 1 ea@ravissued as scrip divider2D06: 300 million shargs

35 EMPLOYEE STOCK OWNERSHIP PLAN (ESOP)

In 2004, the Bank established an Employee Stocke®stip Plan (ESOP) to recognize and retain goofibpaing

key employees. The Plan gives the employee thé tigbwn the Bank’s shares at the issue priceacltordance
with a resolution of the shareholders of the Bantha Extraordinary General Meeting of shareholderisl on 26
June 2004, the shareholders surrendered 2% of ghaie entittement under the Bank’s rights issti¢harights
issue price of AED 20 per share, for the benefithef Bank’s employees under this plan. Under thisngement,
the bank acquired 913,999 of its own shares asthe price of AED 20 per share.

Out of the above shares, the Bank granted 502 j6&&s during 2004 at the rights issue price of ABper share
to key employees who achieved certain pre-detexnimiteria. These employees’ entitlement to ownierblecame
effective on or before 31 December 2004.

The remaining 411,300 shares of AED 10 each aadjtiyethe Bank under this scheme were held as E®aQRs
and were equivalent to 4,113,000 shares of AEDch adter the share split during 2005. The costagfuisition of
these shares was AED 8,226 thousand at the r&@EIBf20 per share of a nominal value of AED 10 eacAED 2

per share after the share split.

These shares were issued at AED 2 each during méops year, under nominee arrangements, to \@&riou
categories of employees on condition that the eyegs continue in the service of the Bank for aragminimum
period ranging between three to four years fromgifaat date. Should the employee leave beforedh®letion of
the full vesting period, a proportion of the shanesild revert back to the Bank. Management comsidainlikely
that a significant amount of shares would revertkbto the Bank on account of employees leaving reefo
completing their vesting period.
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35 EMPLOYEE STOCK OWNERSHIP PLAN (ESOP) - continued

The fair value of these shares on the grant date MED 109,817,000. Accordingly, an amount of AED
101,591,000, being the fair value less the amorgusverable from the employees, will be chargeth&income
statement over the vesting period as set out below:

Charge to
Income Statement
Year AED’000
2006 30,312
2007 36,846
2008 25,085
2009 6,856
2010 2,492
Total 101,591
36 RESERVES
Donated Exchange
Statutory land General translation
reserve reserve reserve reserve Total

AED’000 AED’000 AED’000 AED’000 AED’000

As of 1 January 2006 731,700 286,951 595,000 8,32(621,971
Exchange and other adjustments - - - 22,003 22,003
Premium on issue of shares — Bank 2,000,000 - - - 2,000,000
Relating to subsidiary 29,330 - - - 29,330
Transfer from retained earnings - - 300,000 - 300,000
As of 31 December 2006 2,761,030 286,951 895,000 ,3230 3,973,304
Exchange and other adjustments - - - (2,983) (2,983)
Reversal of share premium in a

subsidiary (4,293) - - - (4,293)
Transfer from retained earnings - 755,000 - 755,000
Relating to disposal of donated land - (10,812) - - (10,812)
As of 31 December 2007 2,756,737 276,139 1,650,000 27,340 4,710,216

Statutory reserve

Article 192 of the UAE Commercial Companies Law &) of 1984 (as amended) and the Articles of Asgmn
of the Bank, require that 10% of the profit atttéele to the shareholders is transferred to a nsinifzlitable
statutory reserve until this reserve equals 50%hef paid up share capital. This reserve is noilabla for
distribution other than in circumstances stipuldtgdaw. The statutory reserve includes AED 2,@tllion being
the premium collected at AED 2 per share on thietsigssue during the previous year.

The Board of Directors has resolved to discontitheeannual transfer to statutory reserve as thervesxceeds
50% of the paid up capital.

Donated land reserve

The Government of Dubai has donated certain landhatias been allocated for the sole benefit ofstiereholders
of the Bank. Such land is included in investmewnpprties (Note 22). The donated land reserveesgmts the fair
value of the land, net of disposals, at the timthefdonation.

General reserve
Transfer to general reserve is made based on sigeetion of the Board of Directors and is subjecthie approval
of the shareholders at the annual general meeting.
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37 DIVIDENDS PAID AND PROPOSED

2007 2006
AED’000 AED’000
Cash dividend of AED 0.40 per share of AED 1 each
(2006: AED 0.35 per share of AED 1 each) 1,198,400 980,000
Scrip dividend of AED 0.15 per share of AED 1 each
(2006: AED 0.07 per share of AED 1 each)

449,400

196,000

Dividends relating to the year 2006 were declarati@aid/issued during the year. During 2006, chegldends of
AED 0.35 per share (totalling AED 299,177 thousanedBting to the year 2005 were paid. ProposeH aad scrip
dividends relating to the year 2007 are subjethécapproval of the shareholders at the Annual éieeting to

be held during March 2008.

38 CUMULATIVE CHANGES IN FAIR VALUE

2007 2006
AED’000 AED’000
At 1 January 2007 544,649 -
Realised gains on AFS financial investments reifladso
income statement on disposal (116,430) -
Net unrealized gains on AFS investments 578,418 544,649
At 31 December 2007 1,006,637 544,649

39 MINORITY INTEREST

Minority interest represents the minority shareleodd proportionate share in the aggregate valukeohet assets of

the subsidiaries and the results of the subsidianerations.

40 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND COMMITMENTS

Financing-related financial instruments

Financing-related financial instruments include outments to extend financing, standby letters afddr and
guarantees which are designed to meet the requiteroéthe Group’s customers.

Commitments to extend financing represent contedaammitments to provide Islamic financing. Corments
generally have fixed expiration dates, or othemteation clauses and normally require the payméatfee. Since
commitments may expire without being drawn upom, ttital contract amounts do not necessarily reptdsture
cash requirements. Standby letters of credit armragiees commit the Group to make payments on fbehal
customers contingent upon the failure of the custaim perform under the terms of the contract.

The Group has outstanding commitments and conttrigahilities under letters of credit and guarasteising in
the normal course of business, as follows:

2007 2006
AED’000 AED'000
Contingent liabilities:
Acceptances 1,462,287 593,256
Letters of credit 6,161,796 2,542,348
Letters of guarantee 10,381,479 9,038,742
12,174,346

18,005,562
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40 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND COMMITMENTS - continu ed

2007 2006
AED’000 AED'000
Commitments
Capital expenditure commitments 578,299 1,086,447
Irrevocable undrawn facilities commitments 9,391,000 4,471,000

9,969,299 5,557,447

41 DERIVATIVES

The table below shows the positive and negativevidues of derivative financial instrumenighich are equivalent
to the market values, together with the notionabants analysed by the term to maturity. The nati@mount is
the amount of a derivative’s underlying asset,regfee rate or index and is the basis upon whicimgdsin the
value of derivatives are measured. The notionaluants indicate the volume of transactions outstamdt year end
and are neither indicative of the market risk ned risk.

31 December 2007Notional amounts by term to maturity

Positive  Negative  Notional Over 3 Over 1 Over
fair fair amount  Within3 monthsto yearto 3to5 Over5
value value Total months 1 year 3 years years ryea

AED’'000 AED’000 AED’000 AED'000 AED’'000 AED’'000 AED'000 AED’000

Derivatives held for trading:

Foreign exchange

contracts 33,726 29,633 14,936,790 12,009,606 356 2,571,100 - -
Profit rate swaps 33,052 33,052 4,530,033 - - 1,9M3 2,588,590 -

66,778 62,685 19,466,823 12,009,606 356,084 458382, 2,588,590 -

31 December 2006 otional amounts by term to maturity

Positive  Negative  Notional Over 3 Overl Over3
fair fair amount  Within3 monthsto yearto to5 Over5
value value Total months 1 year 3 years years rsyea

AED’'000 AED'000 AED’'000 AED'000 AED'000 AED000 BB00 AED'000

Derivatives held for trading:
Foreign exchange
contracts 3,155 2 2,661,945 2545589 116,356 - - -

The bank has positions in the following types aidsives.

Foreign exchange contracts

Foreign exchange contracts are contractual agrésnemither buy or sell a specified currency apacific price
and date in the future. Foreign exchange contractscustomised contracts transacted in the oeecdlinter
market.

Swaps

Swaps are contractual agreements between two péotiexchange profit or foreign currency differatgibased on
a specific notional amount. For profit rate swagsnterparties generally exchange fixed and fhgatate profit
payments based on a notional value in a singleenayt For currency swaps, fixed or floating prpfityments as
well as notional amounts are exchanged in diffecentencies.
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41 DERIVATIVES - continued

Derivatives held or issued for trading purposes

Most of the Bank’s derivative trading activitiedate to sales and strategic hedging (see belowaesSactivities
involve offering products to customers at compeitprices in order to enable them to transfer, fgooli reduce

current and expected risks.

Derivatives held or issued for hedging purposes

As part of its asset and liability management tla@iBuses derivatives for hedging purposes in cweeduce its

exposure to currency and profit rate risks. Thiadhieved by hedging specific financial instruraearid forecasted

transactions as well as strategic hedging agauesiad balance sheet exposures.

For profit rate risk, strategic hedging is carr@d by monitoring the repricing of financial assatsl liabilities and
entering into profit rate swaps. As strategic heggdoes not qualify for special hedge accountirgated

derivatives are accounted for as trading instrument

42 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and balances with central banks
International Murabahat, short term
Balances and deposits with banks and other finbimsgtutions

43 PROFIT EQUALISATION PROVISION

Balance, beginning of the year

Share of profit for the year (Note 13)

Zakat for the year (Note 33)

Additional transfer from / (to) depositors’ sharfepoofit
during the year (Note 13)

Balance, end of the year (Note 28)

2007
AED’000

4,905,657
16,279,701
1,186,657

22,372,015

2007
AED’000

89,244
15,657
(10,882)

317,300

411,319

2006
AED'000

3,111,724
14,991,239
407,245

18,510,208

2006
AED'000

135,455
6,152
(2,363)

(50,000)

89,244

Profit equalisation provision represents a portidrthe depositors’ share of profits set aside @saaision. This
provision is payable to the depositors upon ther@a@d of the Board of Directors and the Bank's Sddar
Supervisory Board. Zakat on profit equalisatioavision is included under accrued Zakat.
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44 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Group enters into transactions with directéessy management personnel and their related condertise
ordinary course of business at commercial profid @ommission rates. All facilities to related jestare
performing facilities and are free of any provisfon possible impairment.

The significant balances outstanding at 31 Decentbaespect of related parties included in the obtidated
financial statements are as follows:

Directors

and key
Major ~management
shareholders personnel Associates Total
AED'000 AED'000 AED'000 AED'000

2007
Financing and investing assets 4,372,521 225,366 358,793 4,956,680
Customers’ deposits 273,527 54,831 491,377 819,735
Contingent liabilities 2,115,119 13,316 12,489 2,140,924
Income from financing and
investing assets 240,796 14,959 22,214 277,969
Depositors’ share of profits 11,520 313 12,498 24,331
Directors
and key
Major  management
shareholders personnel Associates Total
AED'000 AED'000 AED'000 AED’000
2006
Financing and investing assets 3,719,201 193,333 0056, 3,918,539
Customers’ deposits 913,143 59,723 300 973,166
Contingent liabilities - 5,067 - 5,067
Income from financing and
investing assets 222,394 7,822 330 230,546
Depositors’ share of profits 37,773 652 - 254

The compensation paid to key management persofttet @ank is as follows:

2007 2006
AED’000 AED'000
Salaries and other benefits 36,364 19,925
Employee terminal benefits 745 426
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45 SEGMENTAL INFORMATION

For operating purposes the Group is organisedfmtomajor business segments as follows:

i) Retail and business banking: Principally hamgllismall and medium businesses and individual
customers’ deposits, providing consumer and comiaderourabahats,
ijarah, credit card and funds transfer facilitiesl arade finance facilities.

ii) Corporate and investment banking: Principalgntling financing and other credit facilities angpdsit and
current accounts for corporate and institutionat@mers and investment
banking services.

iii) Real estate: Property development and other estate investments.

iv) Others: Treasury and other functions.

These segments are the basis on which the Growptsefs primary segment information. Transactibesveen
segments are conducted at estimated profit ratehwipproximate to market rates on an arm'’s lebg#is.

Primary segment information — business segments
2007

The following table presents income and profit amdtain asset and liability information regardimg tBank’s
business segments for the year ended 31 DecemBér 20

Corporate

Retail and and

business investment

banking banking Real estate Others Total

AED’000 AED’000 AED’000 AED’000  AED’000
Segment revenue 2,616,252 2,141,932 369,088 880,702 6,007,974
Operating expenses (771,832) (323,936) (121,412) (251,808) (1,468,988)
Provisions for impairment (37,025) (239,898) - (24,545)  (301,468)

Profit for the year before depositors’
share, taxation and gain on transfer

of interest in subsidiary 1,807,395 1,578,098 247,676 604,349 4,237,518
Depositors’ share of profits (1,387,016) (527,186) - (441,812) (2,356,014)
420,379 1,050,912 247,676 162,537 1,881,504

Net gain on transfer of interest in

subsidiary 617,169
Taxation 14,148
Profit for the year 2,512,821
Segment assets 8,112,849 47,208,988 4,402,792 24,014,130 83,798,75

Segment liabilities and equity 45,022,326 19,994,502 3,493,600 15,228,331 83,%98,7

Capital expenditure 28,494 196,103 - 104,959 329,556
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45 SEGMENTAL INFORMATION
Primary segment information — business segments

The following table presents income and profit amdtain asset and liability information regardirng tBank’s
business segments for the year ended 31 DecemBér 20

Corporate
Retail and and
business investment
banking banking  Real estate Others Total
AED’000 AED’000 AED’000 AED’000  AED’000
Segment revenue 2,197,096 1,189,807 628,680 560,844576,457
Operating expenses (564,197) (206,804) (175,249) 12,1%4) (1,158,414)
Provisions for impairment (36,064) 31,145 - 648) (76,467)
Profit for the year before depositors’
share and taxation 1,596,835 1,014,148 453,431 277,162 3,341,576
Depositors’ share of profits (1,226,893) (259,782) - (270,936) (1,757,611)
369,942 754,366 453,431 6,226 1,583,965
Taxation (6,122)
Profit for the year 1,577,843
Segment assets 4,735,446 34,834,906 3,068,802 ALIZDO 64,433,936
Segment liabilities and equity 38,440,177 9,292,3052,746,250 13,955,204 64,433,936
Capital expenditure 10,169 70,529 - 43,545 13,2

Secondary segment information — geographical segntsn

Although the management of the Group is based pilynan business segments, the Group operates @ tw
geographic markets: UAE which is designated as edti;y and outside the UAE which is designated as
international. The following table shows the disition of the Group’s operating income, total &ssd capital
expenditure by geographical segment:

Domestic International Total
2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006
AED’000 AED’000 AED’000 AED'000 AED’'000 AED’000
Gross income 6,617,910 4,267,847 359,028 308,610 6,976,938 4,576,457
Total assets 78,819,818 60,766,381 4,918,941 3,667,555 83,738,759 64,433,936
Capital expenditure 243,204 58,756 86,352 65,487 329,556 124,243
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46 MATURITY ANALYSIS OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

The table below summarises the maturity profil¢hef Group’s assets and liabilities analysed acogrtti when
they are expected to be recovered or settled.

At 31 December 2007

Less than 1-3 3 months lto5 Over 5
one month months to 1 year years years Total
AED’000 AED'000  AED’000 AED’000 AED’000 AED’000
Assets:
Cash and balances with central
banks 1,027,859 3,877,798 - - - 4,905,657
Balances and deposits with
banks and other financial
institutions 673,802 - 512,855 - - 1,186,657
International morabahats, short
term 6,552,361 8,226,217 1,501,123 - - 16,279,701
Islamic financing and
investing assets 5,965,352 5,658,754 10,716,034 22,168,281 4,379,420 48,887,841
Properties held for sale - - - 131,831 - 131,831
Investment properties - - - 1,499,303 - 1,499,303
Investments in associates - - - 3,741,596 - 3,B8L,5
Other investments - 820,849 2,256,750 1,133,278 -,2104877
Receivables and other assets 240,825 1,986,894 - 2;227,719
Fixed assets - - - 455,504 175,163 630,667
Goodwill - 36,910 - - - 36,910
Total 14,460,199 18,620,528 16,973,656 29,129,7934,554,583 83,738,759
Customers’ deposits 4,760,675 23,487,660 2,085,23@,683,273 - 65,016,828
Due to banks and other 240,660 - 2,000,662 - - 2,241,322
financial institutions
Sukuks - - - 2,754,750 - 2,754750
Other liabilities 639,886 99,896 523,673 1,667,745 - 2,931,200
Accrued zakat - 129,542 - - - 129,542
Equity - 1,198,400 - - 9,466,717 10,665,117
Total 5,641,221 24,915,498 4,609,555 39,105,768 466,717 83,738,759
Net liquidity gap 8,818,978 (6,294,970) 12,364,10%9,975,975) (4,912,134) -
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46 MATURITY ANALYSIS OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES — continued

At 31 December 2006

Less than 3 months to 1t05
one month 1 -3 months 1 year years Over 5years  Total
AED’000 AED’000 AED'000 AED’'000 AED’000 AED’000
Assets:
Cash and balances with central
banks 826,720 2,159,253 - 125,751 - 3,111,724

Balances and deposits with
banks and financial

institutions 407,245 - - - - 407,245
International morabahats, short

term 13,190,884 1,800,355 - - - 14,991,239
Islamic financing and investing

assets 6,173,206 3,761,308 10,858,901 13,263,336 1,226,196 35,282,947
Properties under construction - - - 2,171,004 - 72,004
Properties held for sale - - - 136,585 - 136,585
Investment properties - - - 761,213 - 761,213
Investments in associates - 1,050,401 - 1,050,401
Other investments - 1,069,181 - 2,454,763 - 3,528,9
Receivables and other assets 159,986 2,177,506 4619,6 77,985 - 2,465,123
Fixed assets - - - 225,177 270,424 495,601
Goodwill - - - - 36,910 36,910
Total 20,758,041 10,967,603 10,908,547  20,266,215,533,530 64,433,936
Customers’ deposits 5,986,288 27,903,718 13,592,534249,942 - 47,732,482
Due to banks 511,420 49,682 3,973,982 114,816 - 649900
Other liabilities 1,344,889 1,760,335 - 50,045 - 15%,269
Accrued zakat - - 72,035 - - 72,035
Equity - 980,000 - - 7,844,250 8,824,250
Total 7,842,597 30,693,735 17,638,551 414,803 420 64,433,936
Net liquidity gap 12,915,444 (19,726,132) (6,73@00 19,851,412 (6,310,720) -

47 FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Fair value represents the amount at which an assebe exchanged, or a liability settled, betwesmwiedgeable,
willing parties in an arm’s length transaction. ffBiences can therefore arise between book valwkeruthe
historical cost method and fair value estimates.

The fair value of foreign exchange contracts arafipprate swaps is set out in note 41. The faiuea of the
Group’s other financial assets and liabilities, eptcunquoted securities which are stated at costnat materially
different from their carrying values as at 31 Deben2007.

The following describes the assumptions used terdene fair values for those financial instrumentsch are not
already recorded at fair value in the financiatestaents.

For financial assets and financial liabilities thag¢ liquid or having a short term maturity (lesart three months) the
carrying amounts approximate to their fair valu€his applies to demand deposits, savings accouitf®uwt a
specific maturity and variable profit rate finardistruments.

Valuation of all financial instruments recordedait value, is based on quoted market prices.
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48 FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

The following are the classifications of finandiaétruments in accordance with IAS 39:

31 December 2007

Financing Fair value
and Available through Amortised
receivables  for sale profit and loss cost Total
AED’000 AED’000 AED’000 AED’000 AED’000
Financial assets
Balances with central banks - - - 3,877,798 3,899,7
Balances and deposits with
banks and financial institutions - - - 1,186,657 1,186,657
International morabahat, short term - - - 16,279,7016,279,701
Islamic financing and investing 48,887,841 - - - 48,887,841
assets
Other investments - 3,390,028 820,849 - 4,210,877
Other assets 1,881,073 - - 1,040,692 2,921,765
50,768,914 3,390,028 820,849 22,384,848 77,364,639
Financial liabilities
Customer deposits - - - 65,016,828 65,016,828
Due to banks and other financial - - 2,241,322 2,241,322
institutions )
Sukuks - - - 2,754,750 2,754,750
Others - - - 3,057,258 3,057,258
- - - 73,070,158 73,070,158
31 December 2006
Fair value
through
Financing and Available profit and Amortised
receivables for sale loss cost Total
AED’000 AED’000 AED’000 AED’000 AED’000
Financial assets
Balances with central banks - - 2,285,004 2,285,004
Balances and deposits with banks - - - 407,245 407,245
and financial institutions
International morabahats, short term - - 14,991,239 14,991,239
Islamic financing and investing
assets 35,282,947 - - - 35,282,947
Other investments 2,454,763 1,069,181 - 3,523,944
Other assets 2,281,418 - - 841,613 3,123,031
37,564,365 2,454,763 1,069,181 18,525,101 59,613,410
Financial liabilities
Customer deposits - - 47,732,482 47,732,482
Due to financial institutions - - - 4,649,900 4,649,900
Others - - - 3,189,481 3,189,481
- - - 55,571,863 55,571,863
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49 RISK MANAGEMENT
49.1 Introduction

Risk is inherent in the Group’s activities butstmanaged through a process of ongoing identifinatheasurement and
monitoring, subject to risk limits and other comgro This process of risk management is criticalthe Group’s
continuing profitability and each individual withithe Group is accountable for the risk exposurdating to his
responsibilities.

The Group is exposed to credit risk, liquidity riakd market risk, the latter being subdivided itraaling and non-
trading risks. It is also subject to operatingsis

The independent risk control process does notdgchusiness risks such as changes in the envirdnteehnology and
industry. They are monitored through the Groupratsgic planning process.

49.1.1 Risk management structure

The Board of Directors is ultimately responsible fdentifying and controlling risks; however, theage separate
independent bodies responsible for managing andtamnioy risks.

Board of Directors
The Board of Directors is responsible for the olleisk management approach and for approving iglestrategies and
principles.

Risk Management Committee

The Risk Management Committee has the overall respitity for the development of the risk strategyd
implementing principles, frameworks, policies amdits. It is responsible for the fundamental riskues and manages
and monitors relevant risk decisions.

Risk Management and Control

The Risk Management Department is responsiblenfiptémenting and maintaining risk related procedtwe=nsure
an independent control process. The departmeamisigonsible for credit approval, credit administmrat portfolio
management, market risk and overall risk control.

Treasury
Group Treasury is responsible for managing the @moassets and liabilities and the overall finahsieucture. It is
also primarily responsible for the funding and idijty risks of the Group.

Internal Audit

Risk management processes throughout the Groupmwadited periodically by the internal audit functichat
examines both the adequacy of the procedures andthup’s compliance with the procedures. Inteviadit
discusses the results of all assessments with raaread, and reports its findings and recommendatmtise Audit
Committee.

49.1.2 Risk measurement and reporting systems

The Group measures risks using conventional gtisétanethods for credit, market and operationaddstisFurther,

the Group also uses quantitative analysis and rdstim support revisions in business and risk gir@¢eas and
when required. These analysis and methods rdftebtthe expected loss likely to arise in normairse of business
or unexpected losses in an unforeseen event bassinple statistical techniques and probabilitiesiveééd from

historical experience. The Group also runs woes scenarios that would arise in the event tha¢ree events
which are unlikely to occur do, in fact, occur.

Monitoring and controlling risks is primarily perfoed based on limits established by the Group. s&Hinits
reflect the business strategy and market envirohraethe Group as well as the level of risk that @@roup is
willing to accept, with additional emphasis on stde industries.
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49.1.2 Risk measurement and reporting systems - cimued

Information compiled from all the businesses isneixeéd and processed in order to analyse, contmblidentify
early risks. This information is presented andl@xed to the Board of Directors, the Risk Comneittend the head
of each business division. The report includes egafe credit exposure, limit exceptions, liquidigios and risk
profile changes. On a monthly basis detailed apgrof industry, customer and geographic risksetaklace.
Senior management assesses the appropriatendespbvision for impairment losses on a quartedgi.

49.1.3 Risk mitigation
As part of its overall risk management, the Grogpswarious methods to manage exposures resulimgchanges
in credit risks, profit rate risk, foreign curreesj equity risks, and credit risks.

The Group seeks manage its credit risk exposuresigh diversification of financing and investmeutiwties to
avoid undue concentration of risk with individualsd groups of customers in specific locations @iriesses. The
Bank actively uses collateral to reduce its cradis.

The market risk is managed on the basis of premhdted asset allocation across various asset céésgand
continuous appraisal of market conditions for mogatrand expectation of foreign currencies ratecbemark
profit rates and equity houses.

In order to guard against liquidity risk, managetnas diversified funding sources and assets areageghwith
overall Group liquidity in consideration maintaigia healthy balance of cash and cash equivalents.

49.1.4 Excessive risk concentration

Concentrations arise when a number of counterpaatie engaged in similar business activities, tvides in the
same geographic region, or have similar economatufes that would cause their ability to meet cmitral
obligations to be similarly affected by changes@onomic, political or other conditions. Concetitras indicate
the relative sensitivity of the Group’s performarnoedevelopments affecting a particular industrygeographical
location.

In order to avoid excessive concentrations of tiisk, Group’s policies and procedures include spegifidelines to
focus on maintaining a diversified portfolio. Idiield concentrations of credit risks are controlieed managed
accordingly.

49.2 Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk that a customer or coumptanty will cause a financial loss to the Group aWirig to discharge
a contractual obligation. The Group manages amirais credit risk by setting limits on the amowftrisks it is
willing to accept for individual counterparties afudt geographical and industry concentrations apanbnitoring
exposures in relation to such limits.

The Group has established a credit quality revievegss to provide early identification of possiblanges in the
creditworthiness of counterparties. Counterpairtyité are established by the use of a credit risissification

system, which assigns each counterparty a rishgatRisk ratings are subject to regular revisidhe credit quality
review process allows the Group to assess the fiatirss as a result of the risks to which itxpesed.

Islamic derivative financial instruments
Credit risk arising from derivative financial insinents is, at any time, limited to those with gesifair values, as
recorded in the balance sheet.

Credit-related commitments risks

The Group makes available to its customers guazaraed letters of credit which require that the Upranakes
payments in the event that the customer fails Ifd &éertain obligations to other parties. Thigpese the Group to a
similar risk to financing and investing assets #drese are mitigated by the same control procesgkpalicies.
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49.2 Credit Risk (continued)

49.2.1 Maximum exposure to credit risk without takng account of any collateral and other credit

enhancements

The table below shows the maximum exposure to tris#tifor the components of the balance sheelydieg
derivatives. The maximum exposure is shown gras®rb the effect of mitigation through the use aister netting

and collateral agreements.

Balances with central banks

Due from financial institutions

Short term international morabahat
Islamic financing and investing assets
Other investments

Other assets

Contingent liabilities
Commitments

Total

Notes

15
16

17
19

40

49.2.2 Risk concentrations of the maximum exposute credit risk

Concentration of risk is managed by client/courderp by geographical region and by industry secitine Bank’s
financial assets, before taking into account arlataral held or other credit enhancements canriagdysed by the

following geographical regions:

At 31 December 2007

UAE
GCC

South Asia
Europe

Africa
Others

Total

Gross Gross
maximum maximum
exposure exposure
2007 2006
AED’000 AED’000
3,877,798 2,285,004
1,186,657 407,245
16,279,701 14,991,239
50,012,510 36,164,190
4,241,734 3,538,844
1,982,270 2,325,262
77,580,670 59,711,784
18,005,562 12,174,346
9,391,000 4,471,000
104,977,232 76,357,130

Corporate
Retail and and
business investment
banking banking Treasury Total
AED’000 AED’000 AED’000 AED’000
7,778,710 42,656,065 7,787,205 58,221,980
- 4,005,043 867,780 4,872,823
334,139 980,694 6,550 1,321,383
- 914,403 8,327,953 9,242,356
- 3,287,061 437,923 3,724,984
- 158,197 38,947 197,144
8,112,849 52,001,463 17,466,358 77,580,670
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49.2 Credit Risk - continued

49.2.2 Risk concentrations of the maximum exposute credit risk - continued

At 31 December 2006

Retailand  Corporate and

business investment
banking Banking Treasury Total

AED’000 AED’000 AED’000 AED’000
UAE 4,735,446 30,118,746 2,996,288 37,850,480
GCC - 2,379,693 5,956,659 8,336,352
South Asia - 690,236 15,260 705,496
Europe - 1,493,145 6,155,858 7,649,003
Africa - 4,704,700 212,251 4,916,951
Others - 191,335 62,167 253,502
Total 4,735,446 39,577,855 15,398,483 59,711,784

An industry sector analysis of the Bank’s finanaasets, before and after taking into account tesihheld or other
credit enhancements, is as follows:

Gross maximum

exposure
2007 2006
AED’000 AED’000

Financial Institutions 27,286,793 24,415,307
Government 5,309,040 2,070,685
Real Estate 19,220,561 13,969,640
Manufacturing and services 13,664,631 13,646,137
Trade 4,539,389 3,526,785
Retail 7,560,256 2,083,230
Total 77,580,670 59,711,784

49.2.3 Collateral and other credit enhancements

The amount and type of collateral required depemdsan assessment of the credit risk of the couatgrp
Guidelines are implemented regarding the acceftiabfitypes of collateral and valuation parameters

The main types of collateral obtained are as fadtow

= For commercial financing and investing, charges owal estate properties, inventory and trade vabées,

= For retail financing and investing, charge oveetsand mortgages over properties.

The Bank also obtains guarantees from parent colepéor financing to their subsidiaries, but thexéfis are not
included in the above table.
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49.2 Credit Risk - continued

49.2.4 Credit quality per class of financial assets

The credit quality of financial assets is managgthie Bank using internal credit ratings. The ¢attlow shows the
credit quality by class of asset for financing tethbalance sheet lines, based on the Bank’s aaiig system.

At December 2007

Balances with Central banks

Due from financial institutions
International morabahat, short term
Islamic financing and investing assets
Other investments

Other assets

Total

At December 2006

Balances with Central banks

Due from financial institutions
International morabahat, short term
Islamic financing and investing assets
Other investments

Other assets

Total

Non-impaired exposures

Low and Individually
fair risk Past due impaired Total
AED’000 AED’000 AED’000 AED’000

3,877,798 - - 3,877,798
1,186,657 - - 1,186,657
16,279,701 - - 16,279,701
47,199,432 1,128,333 1,684,745 50,012,510
4,128,352 - 113,382 4,241,734
1,956,591 - 25,679 1,982,270
74,628,531 1,128,333 1,823,806 77,580,670
Non-impaired exposures
Low and fair Individually
risk Past due impaired Total

AED’000 AED’000 AED’000 AED’000

2,285,004 - - 2,2856,00
407,245 - - 407524
14,991,239 - -14,991,239
33,966,531 781,323 1,416,336 36,164,190
3,149,987 - 388,857 3,538,844
2,296,313 - 28,949 2,325,262
57,096,319 781,323 1,834,142 59,711,784

Past due items include those that are only pasbgiuefew days. An analysis of past due inveséing financing
assets, by age, is provided. The majority of th&t pue items are not considered to be impaired.
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49.2 Credit Risk - continued

49.2.4 Credit quality per class of financial assetscontinued

Credit risk exposure of the Bank’s on- balance shéeancial assets for each internal risk rating

Moody's
equivalent Total Total
grades 2007 2006
AED’000 AED’000
Low risk
Risk rating class 1 Aaa 17,826,344 12,204,251
Risk rating classes 2 and 3 Aal-A3 28,516,452 23,529,485
Fair risk
Risk rating class 4 Baal-Baa3 11,440,073 8,632,483
Risk rating classes 5 and 6 Bal-B3 13,483,971 9,177,230
Risk rating class 7 Caal-Caa3 3,361,691 3,552,869
Sub standard
Risk rating class 8 1,128,333 781,323
Impaired
Risk rating classes 9, 10 and 11 1,823,806 1,834,142
59,711,783

77,580,670

It is the Group’s policy to maintain accurate amshsistent risk ratings across the credit portfolibis facilitates
focused management of the applicable risks anccdingparison of credit exposures across all linebusfiness,
geographic regions and products. The rating syséesnpported by a variety of financial analyticembined with
processed market information to provide the mapuis for the measurement of counterparty risk.imrnal risk
ratings are tailored to the various categories amdderived in accordance with the Group’s ratinticg. The
attributable risk ratings are assessed and updatpdarly. The Moody’s equivalent grades are redeanly for
certain of the exposures in each risk rating class.

49.2.5 Aging analysis of past due but not impairethvesting and financing assets per class of finaradi
assets

As at December 2007

More than
Less than 30 90
Days 31 to 60 days 61 to 90 days Days Total
AED’000 AED’000 AED’000 AED’000 AED’000
Islamic financing and
investing assets 782,178 79,646 35,939 230,570 1,128,333
As at December 2006
Less than 30 More than 90
Days 31 to 60 days 61 to 90 days Days Total
AED’000 AED’000 AED’000 AED’000 AED’000
Islamic financing and
investing assets 456,914 78,831 128,175 117,403 781,323

See Note 17 for more detailed information with extpto the allowance for impairment losses on itingsand
financing assets.

56



Dubai Islamic Bank (Public Joint Stock Company) &ubsidiaries

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
At 31 December 2007

49  RISK MANAGEMENT - continued
49.2.6 Carrying amount per class of financial assetwhose terms have been renegotiated

The table below shows the carrying amount for retiated financial assets, by class.
2007 2006

AED ‘000 AED ‘000

Islamic financing and investing assets 129,352 112,312

49.2.7 Impairment assessment

The main considerations for the impairment assessimelude whether any payments of principal orfiprare
overdue by more than 90 days or there are any krbffiaulties in the cash flows of counterpartiesedit rating
downgrades, or infringement of the original ternigh@ contract. The Group addresses impairmemsassent in
two areas: individually assessed allowances andatiely assessed allowances.

Individually assessed allowances

The Group determines the allowances appropriateedch individually significant Islamic financing arvesting
asset on an individual basis. Items consideredhwdetermining allowance amounts include the suakdlity of the
counterparty’s business plan, its ability to improwerformance once a financial difficulty has arjsprojected
receipts and the expected dividend payout shouttkribpatcy ensue, the availability of other financsapport and
the realizable value of collateral, and the timirighe expected cash flows. The impairment losses®@aluated at
each reporting date, unless unforeseen circumstargeire more careful attention.

Collectively assessed allowances

Allowances are assessed collectively for lossesstamic financing and investing assets that areimaividually
significant (including Islamic credit cards, autamabahat, and unsecured retail financing assetsjenthere is not
yet objective evidence of individual impairment.lgdances are evaluated on each reporting date eath
portfolio receiving a separate review.

The collective assessment takes account of impairthat is likely to be present in the portfolioeevthough there
is not yet objective evidence of the impairmentaim individual assessment. Impairment losses aimasd by
taking into consideration the following informatiomistorical losses on the portfolio, current eamimconditions,
the approximate delay between the time a loskédylito have been incurred and the time it willibentified as
requiring an individually assessed impairment a#loee, and expected receipts and recoveries oneargdp The
impairment allowance is reviewed by credit managarn@ensure alignment with the Group’s overalligol

Acceptances, letters of credit and guarantees sgessed and provision made in a similar manneorakslimic
financing and investing assets.

49.3 Liquidity risk and funding management

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will benable to meet its payment obligations when thelydaé under
normal and stress circumstances. To limit thi&, rlmanagement has arranged diversified fundingcssuin
addition to its core deposit base, manages as#btdiquidity in mind, and monitors future cashwite and liquidity
on a daily basis. This incorporates an assessofi@xpected cash flows and the availability of higlade collateral
which could be used to secure additional fundinmgdfuired.

The Bank maintains a portfolio of highly marketahled diverse assets that can be easily liquidatddei event of
an unforeseen interruption of cash flow. The Batdo has committed lines of credit that it can asa® meet
liquidity needs. In addition, the Bank maintaitetstory deposits with the Central Banks. Theitiijy position is
assessed and managed under a variety of scengiivgy due consideration to stress factors relatmgdpoth the
market in general and specifically to the Bank.
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49.3 Liquidity risk and funding management - contirued

During 2007, the Bank issued its five year Unitadt& Dollar (USD) sukuks amounting to USD 750 ionillto
diversify sources of funding to support businessagh going forward.

The high quality of the asset portfolio ensuredidfsidity and coupled with the Bank’s own fundsddievergreen”
customer deposits help these form a stable fungtingce. Even under adverse conditions, the Baskabeess to
the funds necessary to cover customer needs andtsy@eding requirements.

The primary tool for monitoring liquidity is the uaity mismatch analysis, which is monitored oveccessive time
bands and across functional currencies. Guidelaresestablished for the cumulative negative césli dver
successive time bands.

49.3.1 Liquidity risk management process

The Group’s liquidity risk management process,asi@d out within the Group and monitored by a safgateam in
Group Treasury, includes:

= Day-to-day funding, managed by monitoring futurslcflows to ensure that requirements can be méiis T
includes replenishment of funds as they maturg@barrowed by customers;

= Maintaining a portfolio of highly marketable assétst can easily be liquidated as protection ageamny
unforeseen interruption to cash flow;

= Monitoring balance sheet liquidity ratios agaimgernal and regulatory requirements; and

= Managing the concentration and profile of debt ma#s.

49.3.2 Funding approach

Sources of liquidity are regularly reviewed by mgement to maintain a wide diversification by cuogn
geography, provider, product and term.

49.3.3 Non-derivative cash flows
The table below presents the cash flows payabltéd¥sroup under non-derivative financial liabiliiby remaining
contractual maturities at the balance sheet diie amounts disclosed in the table are the conthandiscounted

cash flows, whereas the Group manages the inhiggaitity risk based on expected undiscounted cafbws.

As at 31 December 2007

Lessthan 3 3 months to Over 5
On demand months 1 year 1to 5 years years Total
AED’000 AED’000 AED’000 AED’000 AED’000 AED’000

Customer deposits 16,299,754 27,398,719 21,139,567 1,630,548 - 6,468,588
Due to banks and other

financial institutions 240,660 643,007 1,412,330 - - 2,295,997
Sukuks - 34,082 102,245 3,163,731 - 3,300,058
Other liabilities 1,457,014 108,678 971,592 393,916 - 2,931,200
Zakat payable - 129,542 - - - 129,542
Total liabilities 17,997,428 28,314,028 23,625,734 5,188,195 - 75,125,385
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49.3 Liquidity risk and funding management - contirued
49.3.3 Non-derivative cash flows — continued

As at 31 December 2006
Lessthan 3 3 monthsto 1

On demand months year 1to 5years Over 5 years Total
AED’000 AED’000 AED’000 AED’000 AED’000 AED’000
Customer deposits 14,887,667 18,915,782 13,937,708 935,088 - 48,676,245
Due to banks and other
financial institutions 199,921 4,313,478 199,520 - - 4,712,919
Other liabilities 1,344,889 192,779 775,087 842,51 - 3,155,269
Zakat payable - 72,035 - - - ,0BB
Total liabilities 16,432,477 23,494,074 14,912,315 1,777,602 - 6,615,468

Assets available to meet all of the liabilities andcover outstanding commitments include cashtraebank balances,
items in the course of collection, short term inggional morabahat with banks, investing and firemnassets and other

investments.

49.3.4 Derivative cash flows

The Group’s derivatives will be settled on thedaling basis:

= Foreign exchange derivatives: This mainly comprisesign exchange contracts which are a promisaither

buy or sell a specified currency at a specificgpaad date in the future.
=  Profit rate derivatives: Comprise profit rate swaps

The table below analyses the Group’s derivativarfaial liabilities that will be settled on a netskwinto relevant
maturity groupings based on the remaining periathetbalance sheet to the contractual maturity. ddte amounts

disclosed in the table are the contractual undisismlicash flows.

As at 31 December 2007

Less than 3 3 months to Over 5
Ondemand  months 1 year 1to 5 years years Total
AED’000 AED’000 AED’000 AED’000 AED’000 AED’000
Foreign exchange
contracts - 12,009,606 356,084 2,571,100 - 14,936,790
Islamic profit rate swaps - - - 4,530,033 - 4,530,033
- 12,009,606 356,084 7,101,133 - 19,466,823
As at 31 December 2006
Less than 3 3 months to Over 5
Ondemand months 1 year 1to 5 years years Total
AED’000 AED’000 AED’000 AED’000 AED’000 AED’000
Foreign exchange
contracts - 2,545,589 116,356 - - 2,661,945
Islamic profit rate swaps - - - - - -
- 2,545,589 116,356 - - 2,661,945
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49.3 Liquidity risk and funding management - contirued

49.3.5 Off Balance Sheet items

The table below shows the contractual expiry byunitgtof the Bank’s contingent liabilities and coritiments

As at 31 December 2007

Less than 3 3 months to Over 5
Ondemand months 1 year 1to 5 years years Total
AED’'000 AED’000 AED’000 AED’000 AED’000 AED’000
Commitments on behalf of
customers:
- Letters of guarantee - 2,770,614 4,844,649 1,851,646 914,570 10,381,479
- Letters of credit - 2,181,190 2,015,948 1,964,658 - 6,161,796
- Acceptances - 723,761 513,731 224,795 - 1,462,287
- 5,675,565 7,374,328 4,041,099 914,570 18,005,562
Capital commitments - - 49,167 529,132 578,299
Total - 5,675,565 7,423,495 4,570,231 914,570 18,581
As at 31 December 2006
Less than 3 3 months to Over 5
Ondemand months 1 year 1to 5 years years Total
AED’000 AED’000 AED’000 AED’000 AED’000 AED’000
Commitments on behalf of
customers:
- Letters of guarantee - 1,936,987 5,465,888 12237 398,650 9,038,742
- Letters of credit - 1,340,281 548,073 653,994 2,542,348
- Acceptances - 358,392 196,473 38,391 - 593,256
- 3,635,660 6,210,434 1,929,602 398,650 12,174,346
Capital commitments - - 102,733 983,714 - 1,086,447
Total - 3,635,660 6,313,167 2,913,316 398,650 1B/SB
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49.4 Market risk

Market risk arises from changes in market ratef siscprofit rates, foreign exchange rates and equites, as well
as in their correlation and implied volatilitie®arket risk management is designed to limit the amaf potential
losses on open positions which may arise due toraséen changes in profit rates, foreign exchaatgs or equity
prices. The Group is exposed to diverse finaringttuments including securities, foreign curreaciequities and
commodities.

The Group pays considerable attention to markkt riehe Group uses appropriate models, as per atdndarket
practice, for the valuation of its positions andaiges regular market information in order to regeiimarket risk.

The trading market risk framework comprises théofeing elements:

= Limits to ensure that risk-takers do not exceedregmte risk and concentration parameters set biprsen
management.

= Independent mark-to-market valuation, reconciliatiof positions and tracking of stop-losses for itigd
positions on a timely basis.

The policies and procedures and the trading lianiésset to ensure the implementation of the Gronnaigket risk
policy in day-to-day operations. These are revikperiodically to ensure they remain in line witte tGroup’s
general market risk policy. The CEO of the Grousuwres that the market risk management processvig/s
adequately and appropriately staffed. In additmits internal procedures and systems, the Greugdquired to
comply with the guidelines and regulations of trenttal Bank.

49.4.1 Profit margin risk

The Group is not significantly exposed to risk émnis of repricing of its customer deposits sinoeadcordance with
Islamic Sharia’a, the Group does not provide catia rates of return to its depositors or investihvaecount holders.
The return payable to depositors and investmerauaxtcholders is based on the principle of the Mabarcontract by
which the depositors and investment account holdgree to share the profit or loss made by the Gmer a given
period.

49.4.2 Profit rate risk

Profit rate risk arises from the possibility thélaages in profit rates will affect future profithtyi or the fair values of
financial instruments. The Group is exposed tdiprate risk as a result of mismatches or gaphénamounts of assets
and liabilities and off-balance sheet instrumeht tature or re-price in a given period. The @rmanages this risk
through risk management strategies.

The effective profit rate (effective yield) of a metary financial instrument is the rate that, whead in a present value
calculation, results in the carrying amount of thstrument. The rate is a historical rate for»edi rate instrument
carried at amortised cost and a current rate fimading rate instrument or an instrument carrietha value.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivityatoeasonable possible change in profit rates, alitbther variables
held constant, of the Group’s income statement.

The sensitivity of the consolidated income statenethe effect of the assumed changes in prafitsran the net income
for one year, based on the variable profit rate-tnading financial assets and financial liabilitiesld at 31 December
2007.

Sensitivity of profit Sensitivity of profit

Increase in  on financing and Increase in on financing and

Currency basis points investing assets basis points investing assets
2007 AED’000 2006 AED’000
AED 50 25,836 50 15,941
usD 50 35,358 50 31,689
Euro 50 349 50 360
Other currencies 50 364 50 450
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49.4 Market risk - continued

49.4.3 Foreign exchange risk

The Bank has significant income recorded in itsreeas subsidiaries and is therefore exposed to mes in the foreign currency rates used to corimedme into the Banks

presentation currency, the UAE Dirham.

The table below summarises the Group’s exposufergagn currency exchange rate risk at 31 Decemlbecluded in the table are the Group’s financretiuments at carrying

amounts, categorized by currency.

Concentrations of currency risk — on- and off-balae sheet financial instruments

At 31 December 2007

Financial Assets:

Balances with central banks

Due from financial institutions

Short term international morabahat
Islamic financing and investing assets
Other investments

Other assets

Total

Liabilities

Customers’ deposits

Due to banks and other financial institutions
Sukuks

Others

Total

Net on balance sheet financial position
Foreign exchange contracts

Cumulative currency position — long / (short)

Other
AED usD GCC GBP Euro Others Total
AED’000 AED’000 AED’000 AED’000 AED’000 AED’000 AED’000
3,748,583 112,074 - - - 17,141 3,877,798
614,928 211,365 92,918 9,018 18,941 239,487 1,586,6
5,920,483 10,359,218 - - - - 16,279,701
31,522,091 14,213,285 111,248 - 75,797 2,965,420,8848341
1,771,817 1,551,647 314,532 - 141,041 431,840 48210
2,661,650 154,971 18,913 - 479 85,752 2,921,765
46,239,552 26,602,560 537,611 9,018 236,258 3,489,677,364,639
53,005,059 8,201,948 119,529 34,857 205,212 3,230,2 65,016,828
710,271 1,438,800 28 - 18,190 74,033 2,241,322
- 2,754,750 - - - - 2,754,750
2,353,280 601,416 93,042 303 4,062 5,155 3,057,258
56,068,610 12,996,914 212,599 35,160 227,464 #4929, 73,070,158
(9,829,058) 13,605,646 325,012 (26,142) 8,794 20,2 4,294,481
12,601,924 (12,487,665) (38,788) (16,662) (57,067) (1,742) -
2,77866 1,117,981 286,224 (42,804) (48,273) 208,487 294481

62



Dubai Islamic Bank (Public Joint Stock Company) &ubsidiaries

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
At 31 December 2007

49  RISK MANAGEMENT - continued
49.4 Market risk - continued
49.4.3 Foreign exchange risk

At 31 December 2006

Others Total
AED’000 AED’000

266,903 2,285,004
337,386 407,245

- 14,991,239
406,359  35,282,94
416,229 3,523,94
826,720 3,123,031

299,664 53527 59,613,410

1,943 47,732,482
240,280 4,649,90
5,549 3,189,481

227,7 55,571,863

(18,151)(153,956)

2,005,825 45841
4,217 -

Other
AED usD GCC
AED’000 AED’000 AED’000 AED’000

Financial Assets:
Balances with central banks 1,941,216 76,885 -
Due from financial institutions 2,963 40,346 -
Short term international morabahat 1,541,507 12,880 342,259
Islamic financing and investing assets 17,742,470 16,438,989 418,326
Other investments 2,316,414 492,271 274,586
Other assets 2,160,280 124,695 11,336
Total 25,704,850 29,842,977 1,046,507
Liabilities
Customers’ deposits 36,444,847 10,737,775 408,644
Due to banks and other financial institutions 1,805 2,761,077 3,715
Others 2,431,689 647,390 100,154
Total 40,078,041 14,146,242 512,513
Net on balance sheet financial position (14,373,191 15,696,735 533,994
Foreign exchange contracts 77,141 90,749 -
Cumulative currency position — long / (short) (1952050) 15,787,484 533,994

2,010,042 0414547
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49.4.3 Foreign exchange risk
Sensitivity analysis — impact of fluctuation of viaus currencies on net income and equity

The tables below indicate the extent to which thalBwas exposed to currency risk at 31 Decembésarmn-trading

monetary assets and liabilities, and forecast tiasls. The analysis is performed for a reasonablgsible movement
of the currency rate against the AED with all otheriables held constant, including the effect @ddiing instruments,
on the income statement (due to the changes ifath&alues of currency sensitive non-trading mangtssets and
liabilities) and equity (due to the change in failue of foreign currency denominated on availdblesale equity

instruments). A negative amount in the table otfl@ potential net reduction in income statemadtexqjuity, while a
positive amount reflects a net potential increaSke sensitivity analysis does not take accourtctibns by the Bank
that might be taken to mitigate the effect of solchnges.

Increase in Effect on Increase in Effect on
currency profit before  currency rate profit before
rate in % tax in % tax

Currency 2007 2007 2006 2006
AED ‘000 AED ‘000
usb +2 22,360 +2 315,750
GBP +2 (856) +2 75
EURO +2 (965) +2 46

Decrease in  Effect on Decrease in  Effect on
currency profit before  currency rate profit before
rate in % tax in % tax

Currency 2007 2007 2006 2006
AED ‘000 AED ‘000
uUsD -2 (22,360) -2 (315,750)
GBP -2 856 -2 (75)
EURO -2 965 -2 (46)

49.4.4 Foreign investment

The Bank has significant income recorded in itsregas subsidiaries and is therefore exposed to mens in the
foreign currency rates used to convert incometimoBanks presentation currency, the UAE Dirham.

The table below indicates the change in recordefitgrefore tax and equity had the result for tlearyended 31
December 2007 been translated at exchange ratesatiee AED adjusted, with all other variableschebnstant,
by the assumed changes below. The sensitivityys@sldo not take account of actions by the Bankrttight be
taken to mitigate the effect of such changes.

Increase in Effect on Increase in Effect on
currency profit before Effect on currency rate profit before Effect on
rate in % tax Equity in % tax Equity
Currency 2007 2007 2007 2006 2006 2006
AED ‘000 AED ‘000 AED ‘000 AED ‘000
Pak Rupees +5 (1,645) 13,397 +5 (2,565) 10,688
Sud Pound +5 11,215 22,109 +5 1,993 27,874
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49.4.4 Foreign investment

Decrease in  Effect on Decrease in  Effect on
currency profit before Effect on currency rate profit before Effect on
rate in % tax Equity in % tax Equity
Currency 2007 2007 2007 2006 2006 2006
AED ‘000 AED ‘000 AED ‘000 AED ‘000
Pak Rupees -5 1,496 (12,120) -5 2,331 (9,651)
Sud Pound -5 9,039 (20,004) -5 (1,803) (25,219)

49.4.5 Equity price risk

Equity price risk is the risk that the fair valuefsequities decrease as the result of change<itetrels of equity
indices and the value of individual stocks. The-trading equity price risk exposure arises frora Bank’s
investment portfolio.

The effect on equity (as a result of a changeénfdlir value of equity instruments held as avaddbolr-sale at 31
December 2007) due to a reasonably possible chiaregpiity indices, with all other variables heldhstant, is as
follows:

Effect on Effect on
% Change income Effect on income Effect on
in Market statement equity statement equity
Market indices indices 2007 2007 2006 2006
AED’000 AED’000 AED’000 AED’000
Dubai Financial Market 5% - 77,763 7,518 18,136
Exchange 5% 51 1,699 669 -
Bahrain Stock Exchange 5% 3,608 - 3,672 -
Kuwait Stock Exchange 5% 10,686 - 9,444 -
Saudi Stock Exchange 5% - 1,365 - -
Others 5% 389 (1,914) 248 -

49.5 Operational risk

Operational risk is the potential exposure to faiahor other damage arising from inadequate dedainternal
processes, people or systems.

The bank is in the process of developing and doating a detailed operational risk framework. Thenfework
aims at laying out clearly defined roles and resjialities of individuals/ units across differentnictions of the
bank that would be involved in performing varioupemmtional risk management tasks. Operational Risk
Management Framework will ensure that operatioisiisrwithin the Dubai Islamic Bank are properlyritéed,
monitored, managed and reported. Key elementsefrdimework include process mapping, setting up tisa
base, setting up of KRIs, risk analysis and riskaggment reporting.

Each new product introduced is subject to a riskexg and signoff process where all relevant ristes identified
and assessed by departments independent of théakisly unit proposing the product. Variations ofiséing
products are also subject to a similar processinBas and support units are responsible for magagerations
risk in their respective functional areas. Theyrapewithin the bank’s operational risk managenfiemhework and
ensure that risk is being managed within their @espe business units. The day-to-day managemeoperfations
risk is through the maintenance of a comprehensygtem of internal controls, supported by robustesys and
procedure to monitor transaction positions and dwation, as well as maintenance of key backupgohares and
business contingency planning.
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49.6 Capital management
49.6.1 Regulatory capital

The Group’s lead regulator the Central Bank of U#dfs and monitors capital requirements for the Gras a
whole. The parent company and individual bankipgrations within the Group are directly supervisgdtheir
respective local regulators.

The central bank of the UAE vide circular No 133 i@quires all banks operating in the UAE to mamtarisk
asset ratio at a minimum of 10% at all times inchitier 1 capital should not be less than 6% afltask weighted
assets. In implementing current capital requiramehthe Central Bank of UAE, the Group maintaims required
ratio of regulatory capital to total risk-weightagsets.

The Group’s regulatory capital is analysed into tiges:

= Tier 1 capital, which includes ordinary share capithare premium, retained earnings, translagésemve and
minority interests after deductions for goodwilldaintangible assets, and other regulatory adjusnefating
to items that are included in equity but are tréaliéferently for capital adequacy purposes.

= Tier 2 capital, which includes qualifying subordie liabilities, collective impairment allowancesdathe
element of the fair value reserve relating to ulised gains on equity instruments classified aslalvie-for-
sale.

Capital management

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital maragnt are to ensure that the Group complies witbreally
imposed capital requirements and that the Grouptaias strong credit ratings and healthy capitébsan order to
support its business and to maximize shareholdaige.

The Group manages its capital structure and madfestanents to it in the light of changes in ecormpunditions
and the risk characteristics of its activities.ohder to maintain or adjust the capital structtine, Group may adjust
the amount of dividend payment to shareholdersirmetapital to shareholders or issue capital stesri No
changes were made in the objectives, policies anckgses from the previous years.

The Group and its individually regulated operatibase complied with all externally imposed capitajuirements
throughout the period.

There have been no material changes in the Gron@'®.gement of capital during the period.
The table below summarises the composition of etgey capital and the ratios of the Group for tearg ended 31

December. During those two years, the individumities within the Group and the Group compliedvatl of the
externally imposed capital requirements to whiaythre subject:

2007 2006
AED’000 AED’000

Tier 1 Capital

Share capital 2,996,000 2,800,000
Statutory reserves 2,756,737 2,761,030
General reserves 1,650,000 895,000
Retained earnings 53,654 43,197
Minority interest 250,810 287,100
Other reserves 303,479 317,274
Proposed bonus shares 449,400 196,000
Less: Goodwill and intangibles (36,910) (36,910)
Total 8,423,170 7,262,691
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2007 2006
AED’000 AED’000

Tier 2 Capital
Cumulative changes in fair value 1,006,637 544,649
Deductions for associates (3,741,596) (1,050,401)
Total capital base 5,688,211 6,756,939
Risk weighted assets
On balance sheet 45,190,253 36,496,279
Off balance sheet 6,617,777 6,005,435
Total risk weighted assets 51,808,030 42,501,714
Capital Ratios
Total regulatory capital expressed as a percerabeal 11.0% 15.9%

risk weighted assets
Tier 1 capital to total risk weighted assets adteductions for associates 9.0% 14.6%

50 COMPARATIVE INFORMATION
Business segment reporting has been re-classifiedrtform with the Group’s revised reporting segtsen
Certain other comparative amounts have been rsifiasto conform to the presentation adopted dutire current

year. Such re-classifications have had no effaateported results or shareholders equity and imemeaterial, both
individually and in aggregate.
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